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. MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

W are taking decisive action to fulftl our aspinations for
sharehalder value in dithoult dimes - rescructuring porttolios,
attacking costs and focusing lnvestment. We have the capabilivies
angd dererminadion o succeed. Cur commimment to eur business

%

os is unchanged. Owr vision of the commercial

pringp
opportunities of providing choices of clean, convenient and
cconomic energy s undiminished.
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Mark Moody S
Chairman
dgreh 11, 1999

Nineteen ninety-eight was a bad year. Business conditions were
difficulr. They may continue so for some time. We are taking
decisive action — so we can continue fulfilling our long-standing
commitment to shareholder value.

[ am confident we can do so. My confidence is based on
Shell companies’ assets and capabilities, the improvements in
performance being achieved, and the calibre and commitment
of Shell people.

Ditficulr condiions :
The world economy grew only half as fast in 1998 as the year
before. Qurput fell in Asia, where the Group has substantial
interests. Reduced demand triggered a sharp fall in oil prices.
They were a third lower than in 1997. In December they fell
below $10 a barrel for the first time since 1986. Warm weather
reduced gas sales. Asian refining margins fell sharply. Chemicals
margins were also lower.

On a current cost of supplies basis, earnings for the year were
$5,146 million excluding special charges — 36% lower than in
1997. Special charges of $4.2 billion for writing down asset
values, restructuring and redundancy cut reported net income
to just $350 million.

Operating activities generated a cash flow of $14.7 billion —
only 12% down on 1997. Capital expenditure rose slightly.

The Group's financial position remains strong,

Exploration and Production earnings were badly hit by low
oil prices, particularly in North America. Oil production rose
slightly, Reserves of oil and gas grew. Increased sales helped

raise Oil Products earnings. Chemicals earnings were badly
affected by deteriorating trading conditions, despite higher
sales and reduced costs.

Some assets have been written down because of the
downward revision of expected long-term business
conditions. Some of the assets intended for sale have also
been written down,

Divestment plans involve parts of two recent acquisitions —
Tejas and Montell. Tejas helps to extend Shell gas business in
the USA. But parts of the business are not performing as
expected. Remedial action includes selling some of its assets.
Montell is a good business. It will be improved if a company
with complementary skills takes an interest.

Changlay sswamplions

Difficult conditions may persist. Economic growth is likely to

be slow. Global markets will become more competitive, Last year
our five-year plans were developed on the basis of an oil price

of $18 a barrel. Our new plans are based on $14 a barrel — with
reduced refining and chemicals margins. Prices in the early part
of this year are even lower, and we recognise this could continue
for some time. Short-term plans and programmes will be
adjusted accordingly.

But there are business opportunities even in tough times.
Strong companies are well placed to acquire strategic assets
from those in weaker positions. New relationships with major
producing countries may develop. We will continue our drive
to offer outstanding value propositions to our customers.




Enorgy of the Ribure

We see great opportunities in delivering the energy of the future.
Gas is clean and efficient. Consumption may double in 20 years.
Shell companies are leaders in the gas business — and are
working to develop markets all over the world. Cleaner cars

are needed to curb traffic pollution. Shell hydrogen technology
is helping to develop fuel-cell powered cars which can be filled
up at existing service stations. Shell renewables businesses are
commercialising new forms of energy.

Drmgishve nolion

Some competitors are merging to reduce costs, Shell companies
work with others to realise synergies and extend opportunities.
Equilon and Motiva — the recent downstream joint ventures

in the USA — are on track to deliver the expected savings.

But we have much to do in our own organisation. We are
focusing on three things: restructuring portfolios, atracking
costs, and focusing investment.

The most fundamental shift will be in the Chemicals
portfolio. About 40% will be sold, leaving only those businesses
in which Shell companies are, or can become, leaders. Exploration
and Production is focusing on acquiring low-cost reserves and
developing gas supplies. Refinery rationalisation continues.

Costs are being cut in all businesses. Portfolio action and
rising oil and gas production will reduce them further. We are
determined to do more. Those who run Shell businesses are
given increasing freedom to act — and are accountable for
delivering results,

Shell companies have always taken a long view. They still
do. Capital investment plans for the next five years have been
cut by a third — but still represent a major investment in
the future. Shell businesses will allocate capital with great
discipline — ensuring funds only go where performance
justifies investment.

The Group has considerable strengths for difficult times —
sound finances, resilient assets, long-standing relationships
with countries, technological deprh, the reputation of the
Shell brand.

All companies must extend their capabilities in today’s
rapidly changing and increasingly competitive business
environment. Qur structures, processes, skills and attitudes
are being transformed. Global businesses have been created.
Executive responsibility has been focused. New skills are being
learned — such as operating convenience stores in service
stations world-wide. New commercial and societal relationships
are being developed.

{meanitting %o changs

It is a commonplace that people are the key to business success.
It is more than that with us. Shell people are by nature achievers
— fiercely proud of their company’s reputation. The strongest
pressure to do what is necessary for competitive performance
comes from them. I know they face difficult conditions and
thank them for their contributions.

Reducing costs and restructuring portfolios to protect the
long-tetm viability of the Group inevitably means that people
lose their jobs ot must move to other organisations. Being
inevitable does not make it less painful. But the process will
be fair, efhicient and sensitive. We recognise their contribution
to Shell companies, often for many years.

Dodivering shorehelder velun

The objective stated last year remains unchanged. [t is to deliver
the profitable growth that will provide the basis for continuing
improvement in the return to our shareholders.

In this regard, the fall in the share prices last year was
disappointing. Our actions seek to redress this. We have no
plans to change our dividend policy. And we continue to strive
for a situation in which both Parent Companies have the option
of buying back shares.

Our goal reflects the changed business outlook. Planning
for an oil price of $18 a barrel, we looked ro achieve a 15%
return on capital employed early next century. At our current
longer-term economic assumptions — including a $14 oil price
— the target is a 14% return by 2001, which is tougher. Prices
have not been at this level earlier in this year and may be below
$14 for some time.

We are committed to achieving our objectives in a manner
consistent with our business principles. Changing business
conditions do not alter this. Our first independently verified
Health, Safety and Environment report was published last year.
So was our first social report. This year's Shell Report focuses
on how sustainable development is being integrated into
business decisions.

Realising our aspirations for sharcholder value requires the
wholehearted commitment of all Shell people. I have no doubt
it will get that. Their talent, skills and drive give me confidence
that we can meet the challenges we face.




. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sir William Purves

Hemrngiog Wredkors

Mark Moody-Stuart

Sir Antony Ackind

Drregiors

Sir Ronald Oxburgh

Dr Eileen Butile

Mark Moody-Stuart Chairman
Botn Seprember 15, 1940.
Joined the Group in 1966.

A Director and a Managing
Director of the Company since
1991 and Chairman since 1997.
A Group Managing Director
since 1991

Philip B Waitts

Born June 25, 1945. Joined the
Group in 1969. A Director and
a Managing Director of the
Company and a Group
Managing Director since 1997,

Sir Antony Acland 6eMe cevo
Born March 12, 1930. A non-
executive Director since 1991,
Entered Diplomatic Service

in 1953. Permanent Under-
Secretary of State, Foreign and
Commaonwealth Office, and
Head of the Diplomatic Service
1982-86. HM Ambassador to
the USA 1986-91. A Director
of Booker plc. Provost of Eton
College.

Teymour A Alireza

Born September 7, 1939. A non-
executive Director since 1997.
President and Deputy Chairman,

The Alireza Group. Chairman
National Pipe Company Ltd,
Saudi Arabia. Director Arabian
Gulf Investments {Far East) Ltd,
Hong Kong. Member of the
International Board of Trustees
of the World Wide Fund for
Narure.

Dr Eileen Butile coe*

Born October 19, 1937.
Appointed a non-executive
Director July 1998. Retired in
1994 from a career of public
scientific appointments. The
UK member of the European
Environment Agency's Scientific

Committee. Chairman of the
UK Arctic Consultative Forum.
Member of a number of
Government and Research
Council scrutiny committees

of environmental aspects of
national and European research.
Chairman of a review of long-
term environmental monitoring
for the Narural Environment
Research Council.

Sir Peter Holmes mc

Born September 27, 1932.

A Director since 1982, Chairman
1985-93 and a Group Managing
Director 198293,




Teymour Alireza

Sir John Jennings cBE FRSE

Born March 30, 1937. A Director
since 1987, Chairman 1993-97.
A Group Managing Director
1987-97. A Director of Det
Norske Veritas, The MITIE
Group and Robert Fleming
Holdings. Member of Board

of Counsellors of Bechrel
Corporation and of International
Advisory Board of Toyora
Corporation.

Professor Robert O'Neill a0*

Born November 5, 1936. A non-
executive Director since 1992.
An Australian citizen, served in

the Australian army 1955-68.
Director of the International
Institute for Strategic Studies
1982-87. Chichele Professor of
the History of War and a Fellow
of All Souls College, Oxford,
since 1987

Sir Ronald Oxburgh ket Frs*

Born November 2, 1934, A non-
executive Director since January
1996. Scientific appointments
196087, Chief Scientific
Adviser, Ministry of Defence
1987-93. Rector, Imperial
College of Science, Technology
and Medicine, since 1993.

Sir William Purves cet pso*

Born December 27, 1931.

A non-executive Director since
Qctober 1993. Rerired from

the Chairmanship of HSBC
Holdings plc in May 1998 after
44 years' service in that Group.
Deputy Chairman of Alstom
s.a., Trustee of Reuters Founders
Share Company Ltd, Director of
East Astatic Co Ltd A/S and
Wortld Shipping and Investment
Co Ltd. Member of Hong Kong
Chief Execurive’s International
Advisory Council and a Member
of Textron Inc International
Adpvisory Council.

*Standing in 1999 for election or
re-efection as a Director of the Company.

Sir John Jennings

Sir Peter Holmes

Company Secretary

lyohi E Munsiff

Joined Group in 1969 as a Legal
Adpviser, Appointed Company
Secretary August 1993,



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors

The current Directors of the Company are shown on pages

4 and 3; all served as Directors throughout 1998 except for

Dr Eileen Buttle CBE, who was appointed as a non-executive
Director by the Board with effect from July 8, 1998. The other
Ditectors welcome the additional perspective that Dr Buttle
brings to the Board from her career as a rescarch scientist and
her long experience of environmental rescarch and monitoring.
In accordance with the Articles of Association, Dr Buttle will
vacate office at the Annual General Mecting o be held on
May 7, 1999 and, being eligible, will offer herself for election
by the sharcholders.

Professor Robert O'Neill, Sir Ronald Oxburgh and Sir
William Purves will retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting and will offer themselves for re-election.

No Director has, or during the financial year had, a contract
of service with the Company. No Director is or was materially
interested in any contract subsisting during or at the end of the
year that was significant in refation to the Company’s business.

The Board’s Statement on Corporate Governance is set out
on pages 8 to 10 and the Report 1o shareholders on Directors’
Remuneration is set out on pages 11 and 12.

Aetivities of the Company

The Company is a holding company which, in conjunction
with Royal Dutch Petroleum Company, a Netherlands
company, owns, directly or indirectly, investments in the
numetous companies constituting the Royal Dutch/Shell Group
of Companies and collectively referred to as “the Group”.

Royal Dutch Petroleun Company has a 60% interest in the
Group and the Company a 40% interest.

The Company’s principal investments are its direct
shareholdings in The Shell Petroleum Company Limited,
Shell Peroleum N.V. and Shell Petroleum Inc.

These three companies own, directly or indirectly, the
investments representing the total Group interests in the other
companies of the Group which are engaged in various activities
related to oil and natural gas, chemicals, power generation,
renewable resources and other businesses throughout the world.
The structure of the Group is shown on the inside front cover
and described in Note 6 to the Financial Statements of the
Company.

Having regard to the fact that the Company has no
subsidiaries, it is appropriate to draw artention to the Message
from the Chairman (pages 2 and 3) and the Operarional
and Financial Review {pages 20 to 41} concerning Group
companies generally which would have had to be included
in this Report if such Group companies had been subsidiaries
of the Company.

Substurtied shoreheldings

At March 9, 1999, the only interest in 3% or more of the
Company’s issued Ordinary share capital notified to the
Company was that of Prudential Corporation Group of
Companies which held 311,003,925 shares (3.12%).

frpgiors” share interests by S Compony

The interests of the Directors in Ordinary shares, including
any interests of a spousc or infant child, are set out below.
These interests are all beneficial.

25p Ordinary shores

January 1, 1998 December 31, 1998

M Moody-Stuart 260,000 365,000
P B Walts - 24,681
Sir Antony Acland 6,000 6,000
T A Alireza - _
Dr E Buttle Q00" 200
Sir Peter Holmes 60,888 60,991
Sir John Jennings 70,200 70,200
Professor R | O'Neill 7,211 7,435
Sir Ronald Oxburgh 2,865 5,026
Sir William Purves 3,000 3,000

No Director had an interest in either of the two classes of Preference shares during the year.
“At date of appointment.

There were no changes in the above interests during the period

from December 31, 1998 10 March 9, 1999.

Ehare pptions

Certain Group companies have option plans, the operation

of which during 1998 is summarised in Note 24 to the Group
Financial Statements on page 63. The Shell Petroleum Company
Limited and Shell Petroleum N.V. are two of the companies
with such plans for executives, the shares involved being those
of the Company and Royal Dutch,

The Shell Petroleum Company Limited, Shell Petroleum
N.V. and Montell U.K. Limited also operate savings-related
share option schemes which have been approved by the Inland
Revenue under the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988,
Under these schemes, options over shares in Shell Transport
are granted to employees of UK Group companies at prices
not less than the market value of the shares on a date no eaclier
than 30 days before the date of grant of the option. Options
are normally exercisable after completion of either a five-year
or a three-year contractual savings period.

No issue of new shares is involved under any of the plans
or schemes mentioned above.

Details of Directors’ interests in options relating to
Shell Transport shares are set out on page 12.

Tyeaditor poymont policy

Statutory Regulations issued under the Companies Act 1985
require a public company to make a statement of its policy
and practice on the payment of trade creditors. As a holding
company with no business other than the holding of shares in
companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group, the Company has
no trade creditors. For the information of shareholders, the
statement that will appear in the Directors’ Report for 1998
of Shell U.K. Limited, the principal operating company of the
Group in the United Kingdom, will confirm that Shell U.K.
complies with the CBI’s Better Payment Practice Code. Shell
U.K. had approximately 33 days’ purchases outstanding at
December 31, 1998 based on the average daily amount
invoiced by suppliers during the year.




Fimoncial $erments aned dividends

The Financial Statements of the Company appear on pages

13 to 16. The amount available for distribution {inclusive of
distributions from retained earnings by companies of the Royal

Dutch/Shell Group) was £1,345.1 million. Dividends declared

and recommended in respect of 1998 amount to £1,343 million.

On November 2, 1998, an interim dividend of 5.3p per
Ordinary share was paid. This dividend was paid as a foreign
income dividend.

The Directors have decided to recommend a final dividend
for 1998 of 8.2p per Ordinary share which would make 13.5p
per share for the year. Subject to approval at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on May 14, 1999
to Members on the Register on April 23, 1999 and to holders
of Bearer Warrants who surtender Coupon No. 203.

Doflor reporting
The US dollar is the currency in which a large part of the
Group’s business is transacted and the Group Financial
Statements are now published in dollars instead of sterling.
Comparative data previously reported by the Group in sterling
have been translated into dollars using the exchange rate
prevailing in the relevant period.

There is no change to the currency in which the Company
reports its financial statements and declares its dividends: these
continue to be expressed in sterling.

Group incomes, srdinory dividends and UK foxation

‘The British Government’s programme of changes to the way
dividends are taxed will be complete on April 6, 1999. From
that date, advance corporation tax (ACT)} will no longer exist,
and shareholders will no longer be able to claim back tax credits
on dividends. The main exception will be for petsonal equity
plans and individual savings accounts, where a 10% credit will
be claimable for a transitional five-year period. Charities will be
able to claim a tax repayment over the same period progressively
reducing from 21% to 4% of the cash dividend.

As described in the 1997 Annual Report, the Boards of
Shell Transport and Royal Dutch Petroleum Company have
reached agreement on the effect of these tax changes on the
40:60 distribution of Group income between the Parent
Companies. Under the ACT-based system, Shell Transport was
receiving 32% of the total distribution in cash and 8% in the
form of a tax credit. After the abolition of ACT, Shell Transport
will receive its 40% share entirely in cash.

In order to prevent the Group having to write off
unrecovered ACT after its abolition, the dividends paid in
1998 took the form of foreign income dividends (FIDs).

FIDs received by individuals resident in the UK are treated

as income which has suffered tax at the lower rate. As with

a normal dividend, higher-rate taxpayers have some additional
tax to pay, but other individuals have no further tax liability.
Shareholders who have no liability to pay income tax are
unable to recover tax on a FID, as no tax credit is attached.

As part of the arrangements for moving from the ACT
to the post-ACT regime, the Shell Transport share of Group
distributions paid as cash dividends in 1998 increased from
32% to 36%. This increase was reflected in the amount of the

final dividend in respect of 1997, paid by Shell Transport on

May 15, 1998, and in the interim dividend for 1998 paid on
November 2, 1998. The effect of the taxation changes on the
dividends on the Company’s Preference shares is set out in
Note 5 on page 15.

Yooy 200G

Shell Transport has no computer systems of its own. Group
companies’ approach to Year 2000 problems is described on
pages 40 and 41, In addirion the Company’s Share Registrar,
Lloyds TSB Registrars, have advised that they do not anticipate
any disruption to the share register as a result of any millennium
problem over which they have control.

fupeditnrs

Following the merger of Price Waterhouse and Coopers &
Lybrand, Price Waterhouse resigned as auditors and the new
firtn, PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed by the Board
to fill the vacancy. PricewaterhouseCoopers have signified
their willingness to continue in office and a resolution for
their reappointment will be submitted to the Annual General
Meeting to be held on May 7, 1999. Company law requires that
special notice be given of the resolution to reappoint auditors
who were appointed by the Board since the previous annual
general meeting, and the approptiate statutory special notice
pursuant to Section 379 of the Companies Act 1985 has been
received by the Company.

By Order of the Board
J E Munsiff, Secretary
March 11, 1999

J;éc; Mot -




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company,
pl.c. (Shell Transport) remains committed o upholding the
highest standards of integrity and transparency in its governance
of the Company. The Board welcomes the publication of an
updated Combined Code setting out both principles of good
governance and a Code of Best Practice. There are 17 principles
to guide Listed Companies and the majority of these have
featured in the Company’s approach to governance for many
years. This statement describes how the principles set out in

the Combined Code are applied by Shell Transport.

Shell Transport’s sole activity is the ownership of a 40%
interest in the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies of which
it is not a part and in whose activities it does not engage. The
other 60% is owned in like manner by Royal Dutch Petroleum
Company (Royal Dutch). This arrangement has stood unaltered
since 1907 subject only to changes of detail, and during this
long period the Group has grown to be one of the largest global
commercial enterprises. The Board considers that these enduring
arrangements between Shell Transport and Royal Dutch have
served shareholders well, Tt must be recognised, however, that
the framework within which the Board operates is conditioned
to some extent by Shell Transport’s unique relationship with
Royal Dutch and this results in some special arrangements
which may not be appropriate in other companies. For instance
the Board Committees dealing with audit and remuneration
matters are joint committees of the Supervisory Board of
Royal Dutch and the Board of Shell Transport. However, these
governance arrangements are always designed with a view to
upholding the best standards of corporate governance and are
subject to ongoing review for improvement and adjustment
~ for the changing demands of business.

The joint arrangements for supervising the governance of
the operations of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies
in over 130 countries are summarised in this statement under
the heading “Arrangements with Royal Dutch Petroleum
Company”. The remainder of this statement refers to the
governance of Shell Transport itself.

Board dructure and provedures

The Board currendy comprises 10 Directors (biographical
details of whom are set out on pages 4 and 5). All Directors
are equally accountable at law to the sharcholders for the
proper conduct of the business. Of these Directors:

* two are Managing Directors of the Company and are also
two of the five Group Managing Directors;

> one of these Managing Directors of the Company is
appointed as Chairman of the Board of Shell Transport;

» eight Directors are non-executive (six of whom have never
held executive positions with the Company) and provide
a wide spectrum of international experience in commerce,
public administration and science.

All members of the Board vacate office at age 70 at the latest.
The Board believes that there is great value to the Company

in being able to access the specific experience in an integrated

energy business of former Managing Directors who retire from

executive office at the age of 60. Currently, there are two
former Managing Directors on the Board, Sir Peter Holmes
and Sir John Jennings.

Under the Articles of Association, Managing Directors are
not required to retire by rotation with the other Direcrors and
offer themselves for re-election by the sharcholders. However,
as previously announced, the Managing Directors will, in
future, offer themselves for re-clection on a regular basis.

The Articles also require one-third of the Directors subject to
retirement by rotation, to retire at each Annual General Meeting.
The Combined Code suggests that Directors should be subject
to re-election at intervals of no more than three years. Suitable
amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association will be
proposed to sharcholders on both counts when next the Articles
are revised. In the meantime, Directors will retire by roration

in advance of the Article requirements to ensure compliance
with the Combined Code. In 1999 three Directors who have
been in office since 1996 will offer themselves for re-election
although only two are required to retire this year in strice
compliance with the Articles.

The Combined Code suggests that non-executive Directors
should comprise not less than one-third of the board and
a majority of the non-executive Directors should be
“independent”. The Company currently has 10 Directors
of whom eight are non-executive and of those, five (namely,

Sir Antony Acland, Dr Eileen Buttle, Professor Robert (FNeill,
Sir Ronald Oxburgh and Sir William Purves) are wholly
independent of any personal business connection with the
Company or members of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group. Since
the year-end, the Board has nominated Sir Antony Acland as
the senior non-executive Shell Transport Director.

While the Chairman of the Board is currently also the most
senior executive Director, this arrangement is not in conflict
with the principle that one person should not have unfettered
powers of decision (please see details of the Committee of
Managing Directors on page 19).

New appointments to the Board are made by the whole
Board, and possible non-executive Directors are suggested by
any Director and reviewed by the Nomination Committee
before any approach is made to the candidate. Any new
appointment is made by the Board only after a recommendation
from the Nomination Committee. The Chairman of the Board
acts as Chaitman of the Nomination Cotnmittee. In view of the
essential requirement for potential Directors to understand the
nature of the responsibilities of the Board and the extensive
operations of the Group, it is considered vital for the Managing
Directors to take part in the briefing of any nominees to the
Board. Accordingly, the Nomination Committee is structured
as a committee of the whole Board so that all Directors can
participate in the nomination process.

The structure of the Commirtee known as the “Committee
of Managing Directors” which considers and develops objectives
and long-term plans of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group is set out
on page 19. The members of this Commirree are also known
as “Group Managing Directors” and the Remuneration and
Succession Review Commitree (please see pages 9 and 10) reviews
and endorses candidates for appointment to these positions.

The Board of Shell Transport considers the appointment of
new Directots of the Company in connection with proposals




for appointment to the position of Group Managing Director
and, where considered appropriate, recommends the person
concerned for appointment as a Director of the Company to
the next annual general meeting. If appointed as a Director of
Shell Transport by the sharcholders, it is normally the case that
the Board also appoints the new Director as 2 Managing
Director of the Company.

The Directors meet regulatly as a Board nine times a year
to deal with business requiring Board approval. Reviews and
reports on the business and plans of the Group are dealt with
at the 11 meetings of the “Conference” between the Directors
of Shell Transport and the members of the Supervisory and
Management Boards of Royal Dutch. Senior executives of the
Group attend meetings of the “Conference” to present strategic
plans and proposals for major projects giving Directors frequent
opportunities to hear from and question those with first-hand
experience of the business in addition to receiving fully
documented reports and proposals.

Going comern ond ntern controls

The Directors consider that taking into account the assets

and income of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group and the long
and successful relationship between Shell Transport and Royal
Dutch, Shell Transport has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable futute. For this reason
the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis for
the financial statements of the Company.

The Directors are tesponsible for, and have reviewed the
effectiveness of, Shell Transport’s system of internal financial
control which is established to provide reasonable assurance
of the safeguarding of its assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records and the reliability of financial information.
Such a system of control can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Key procedures established which are designed to provide an
effective system of internal financial control include segregation
of duties and management authortisation and review. In
addition, Shell Transport safeguards its 40% interest in the
Group, from which it derives virtually the whole of its income,
by appointing a number of Ditectors o the Boards of the Group
Holding Companies; and by the appointment of 50% of the
membership of the Group Audit Committee. The Group’s
approach to internal controls is outlined on page 39.

In accordance with Combined Code implementation advice
from the London Stock Exchange, the review of Shell
Transport’s internal controls was restricted to internal financial
controls pending publication of professional guidance for
Directors on a wider review of all controls.

Ceommrasioations

The Board of Shell Transport recognises the importance of
two-way communication with its shareholders and, in addition
to giving a balanced report of results and progress at each annual
general meeting, the Company has for some time arranged
informal shareholder bricfing meetings at sites around the
United Kingdom each year. In response to sharcholder requests
the Company is introducing Summary Financial Statements
which have been accepted by 97% of shareholders. The
Company also issues a Chairman’s Bulletin to all sharcholders

covering the first half of each financial year and in addition
detailed trading results of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group are
released to the Stock Exchanges each Quarter.

Good communication with institutional shareholders is also
regarded as of vital importance and is based upon presentations
to funds and investment analysts, supplemented by one-to-one
discussions with major investors in the Company by the
Managing Directors who are always ready to discuss major
current issues with representatives of institutional shareholders.

Arvangsments with Royol Donk Pobrolowm Company
Shell Transport and Royal Dutch are independent companies
cach obliged to observe the law and corporate practices of
their country of incorporation, the United Kingdom and the
Netherlands respectively. Shell Transport and Royal Dutch
have over their long association developed a number of special
consultative arrangements to assist with the proper discharge
of their responsibilities to their own respective sharcholders for
stewardship of the Parent Companies’ interests in the Royal
Dutch/Shell Group.

The structure of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group is shown
on the inside front cover of this Annual Report and the
membership of the Boards of the Parent Companies is set out
on page 18 which also describes how the members of the Boards
of the Parent Companies meet together regularly to receive and
discuss the major developments within the Group in meetings
known as the “Conference” as outlined above.

The joint Committees established by the Parent Companies
to assist with their respective governance responsibilities are

described below.

Group Audit Covrsittes

In 1976 the Board of Shell Transport, jointly with the Supervisory
Board of Royal Dutch, constituted a Group Audit Committee
composed of six members, three of whom are appointed by the
Board of Shell Transport from among its members and three
by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch from among its
members. The functions of the Committee, acting in an
advisory capacity ro the Board of Shell Transport and to the
Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch, are to review the financial
reports of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies and 1o
consider the Group internal control proceduires as well as the
results of the Audirors’ examination of the Group Financial
Statements. The three Directors of Shell Transport appointed
to the Committee are Sir Peter Holmes, Professor R ] O'Neill
and Sir William Purves, (Chairman of the Committee);

the three members appointed by the Supervisory Board of
Royal Durtch are Mr | M H van Engelshoven, Mr A G Jacobs
and Mr ] D Timmer.

Bommmnorstion and Succession Boview Commifies

In 1967 the Board of Shell Transport, jointly with the Supervisory
Board of Royal Dutch, constituted a Remuneration Committee
composed of six members, three of whom are appointed by the
Board of Shell Transport from among its metnbers and three

by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch from among its
members. Following restatement of its terms of reference in
1980, this Committee was renamed as Remuneration and
Succession Review Committee. The functions of the Committee
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Romunaration and Succession Review Dommiliee continved

are to make recommendations on all forms of remuneration
with respect to Group Managing Directors and to review
matters relating to the succession to the positions of Group
Managing Directors. The members appointed by the Board

of Directors of Shell Transport are Sir Antony Acland, Sir John
Jennings and Sir Ronald Oxburgh; the members appointed

by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch are Mr KV Cassani,
Jonkheer A A Loudon, and Mr L C van Wachem (Chairman
of the Commitree). While not in the majority, the Boards of
Royal Dutch and Shell Transport have considered it helpful
given the complexity of the salary structures for Managing
Directors in relation to other senior Group executives to include
former Managing Directors in the Committee membership.
The Chairman of the Committee is currently an appointee of
Royal Dutch, namely Mr L C van Wachem, Chairman of

their Supervisory Board. Sir John Jennings has been nominated
by the Board of Shell Transport to respond on its behalf to

any questions relating to remuneration issues.

Soviul Bespamibillty Commites

This Committee was formed in 1997 by the Board of Shell
Transport jointly with the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch.
The Committee is composed of six members, three of whom
are appointed by the Board of Shell Transport from among its
members and three by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch
from among its members. The Committee reviews the policies
and conduct of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of companies with
respect to the Group’s Statement of General Business Principles
as well as the Group’s Health, Safety and Environment
Commitment and Policy.

The three members appointed by the Board of Shell
Transport are Mr T A Alireza, Sir Peter Holmes and Sir Ronald
Oxburgh (Chairman of the Committee). The three members
appointed by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch are
Jonkheer A A Loudon, Mr H de Ruiter and Mr ] D Timmer.

Shell companies have long been open about the values and
principles which guide them, and the Group's Statement of
General Business Principles has been publicly available for over 20
years. The 1997 revision followed extensive internal and external
consultation. It includes commitments to support fundamental
human rights and to contribute to sustainable development.

The first Group Health, Safety and Environment Report
(HSE) was issued in 1997 in addition to separate HSE reports
for the main businesses. The HSE reports are externally verified.
Shell companies are committed to continuously improving
their performance in these areas, and the Group reports
include improvement targets against which future progress
can be measured.

In addition, the contribution Shell companies make to
economic, social and environmental progress was described
in the new Shell Report issued for the first time in 1998, There
are plans to expand, as soon as practicable, the scope of the
Shell Report to present a measured and verified annual report
on Group companies’ progress in embodying sustainable
development in the way they do business and in meeting the
economic, environmental and social expectations of stakeholders.

Complionee vwith the Coade of Bast Praciice
In addition to the principles of good governance, the
Combined Code incorporates a Code of Best Practice and
the London Stock Exchange requires Listed Companies to
indicate whether or not they have complied with the provisions
of the Code of Best Practice throughout the year and to explain
any non-compliance.

The Board of Shell Transport endorses the Code of Best
Practice with which it has complied throughout 1998 except
in so far as its relationship with Royal Dutch rendered strict
compliance undesirable or inappropriate. Such non-compliance
has been detailed and explained in the review above.

The review of internal controls is restricted to internal
financial controls in accordance with Combined Code
implementation advice issued by the London Stock Exchange.
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Philosophy

The philosophy for the remuneration of Group Managing
Directors, including those who are also Directors of the
Company, is consistent with that for senior management
throughout the Group: to attract and retain high-quality staff

at all levels and motivate them towards exceptional performance.
It seeks to align all senior staff with the goals of the Group and
its various businesses, and with sharcholders’ interests.

The remuneration package is made up of base salary, short-term
annual bonus, and long-term incentives.

Baase sobary

The base salary scales for Managing Directors are set by
reference to internal and external market surveys of companies
of similar size and international scope. Base salaries are reviewed
annually and the scales were increased by 5% with effect from
January I, 1998. Progression of an individual Managing
Director’s salary to the target position is usually over a three-year
period from appointment.

Armued bonug

An annual bonus is paid and is determined by the
Remuneration and Succession Review Committee (REMCQO)
by reference to the extent of achievement of challenging Group
performance targets set as part of the annual Group business
plan. The rargets take into account financial, operational, social
and environmental objectives. The maximum bonus payable

is 509 of base salary. The bonus paid to Managing Directors
in respect of the year 1997 was 25%, and in respect of 1998

no bonus will be paid. The annual bonus payment is
non-pensionable.

Longrdorm incondbes

Long-term incentives for Managing Directors are provided
through the Group Stock Option Plans which have been in
operation since 1967, and which are believed to create an
effective method of aligning the interests of Managing Directors
and other Group senior managers with those of shareholders.
The latest options granted to the Managing Directors of Shell
Transport have been adjusted to reflect the position introduced
last year for the majority of the optionees under the Plans,

i.e. that the options are granted for 10 years with a three-year
vesting period. Furthermore, the options granted to Managing
Directors in 1998 for the first time have performance conditions
attaching to 50% of the grant. The performance conditions are
based on the Total Shareholder Return over a three-year period
from October 1, 1998 to September 30, 2001, measured by the
average weighted share price of Royal Dutch and Shell Transport
over the 10-day period at the beginning and end of the said
three-year period as compared with equivalent darta for other
major integrated oil companies and after taking into account
such other factors as REMCO may deem appropriate. The
proportion of the share options subject 1o the performance
conditions which will either become unconditional or lapse

will be determined at the absolute discretion of REMCO.

The shares subject to the Plans are existing issued shares
of the Company and no dilution of shareholders’ equity
is invelved.

Consideration is given on an individual basis to the granting
of options each year.

Tested remmanmreding
Details of the total remuneration and benefits of each Director
are set out on page 12,

Rervice tonlracts

The Managing Directors of Shell Transport do not have service
contracts with their employing company and their entitlement
to notice is the standard for all senior staff — three months,
There are no predetermined termination compensation
arrangements in place for the Managing Directors.

Prusiong/ Retfrement benedits
The principal sources of Managing Directors’ pensions are the
Shell Contributory Pension Fund (for service in the UK) and
the Shell Overseas Contributory Pension Fund (for previous
service overseas). Both Funds are defined benefit plans to
which Managing Directors contribute 4% of relevant earnings.
Managing Directors retire on June 30 following their 60th
birthday, and the maximum pension is two-thirds of their
remuneration, excluding bonuses. There are also provisions, as
for all members of the above Funds, for a dependant’s benefit
of 60% of actual or prospective pension, and a lump-sum
death-in-service payment of three times the annual salary.
During 1998 two Directors accrued retitement benefits under
defined benefit plans (1997: three; 1996: two). No Director has
accrued benefits under a money purchase benefit scheme.
Salaries/fees payable to Managing Directors, totalling
£906,392 in 1998, £834,250 in 1997 and £771,500 in 1996,
count for pension purposes in the Shell Contributory Pension
Fund. The payment of employers’ contributions to the Fund,
which is open to United Kingdom employees of the member
companies, has upon actuarial advice been suspended since
January 1, 1990 because of the financial position of the Fund,
Mr M Moody-Stuart and Mr P B Watts accrued pension
benefits during the year as detailed below. The transfer values
are calculated using the cash equivalent transfer value method
in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11.

£000
Accumulated

annuel

Years of Netincrease
Group service  in accrued Transfer volue

Age as at as at pension of pension pension as at
31.12.98 31.12.98 during 1998 incregse 31.12,98
M Moody-Stuart 58 335 66 959 393
P B Watts 53 30 33 415 221
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Eraoluments of Direciors in obfice during 1998 g Sheows oplons
1998 1997 1996  The interests of Shell Transport Directors under all the stock
M Moody-Stuart option plans of Group companies during 1998 were:
Salaries and fees 437,852 491,718 4134627
Benefits - - - Number of options
Performance-related element - 132,750 141,750 T Market
637,852 624,468 395377 p e e Borcise oot Expiny
Realised share option gains 370,462 767,880 361,600 1198  the year theyear  31.12.98  price exercise date
1,008,314 1,392,348 1,116,977  Sir John Jennings

P B Watts 450,000 ~ 450,000 ~ 227p 437p 14.12.99
Salaries and fees 431,111 197,254 - 474,000 - - 474,000 286p - 131200
Benefits 14,535 4,829 - M Moody-Stuart
Performance-related element - 100,250 - 324,000 - 324,000 231p 346p 8.12.98

445,646 302,333 - 324,000 - - 324,000 227p - 141299
Realised share option goins 32,321 - — 333,000 - - 333,000 286p - 13.12.00
477,967 302,333 - 333,000 - - 333,000 326p - 11.12.01

Sir Antony Acland 387,000 - - 387,000 439 - 10.12.02
Directors’ fees 25,000 22,500 20,000 - 464,000 - 464,000 363p - 21.12.08
Commitiee fees 3,750 3,750 3,750  PB Wals®

28,750 26,250 23,750 139,200 - 19,200 120,000 284p 455p 13.12.00

T A Alireza 194,700 - - 194,700 324p - 11.12.01
Directors’ fees 25,000 3,403 - 272,000 - - 272,000 439 - 10,1202

" Committee fees 3,024 - - - 325,000 - 325,000 363p - 211208

28,024 3,403 —  °In addition, Mr Watts also holds an opfion under The Shell Petroleum Company Limited

Dr E Buile Sharesave Scheme to purchase 5,214 Shefl Transporf Ordinary shares at 330p. This opfion

- was granted on December 12, 1996 and matures on February 1, 2002.

Directors’ foes 12,030 - -
_ 12,030 - = Notes )

Sir Pefer Hollres (i) All the above figures have been adjusted to reflect the
D:recrc.»rs fees 25,000 22,500 20,000 2-for-1 capiralisation issue effective on June 30, 1997
Commitiee fees 6,774 3,750 3,750 and cerrain adjusted exercise prices are rounded down
Holding company fees ;g:::g ;Z’lgg il';?g _to the nearest w!"lolc penny. .

. : : (i) All the options listed above relate to Shell Transport Ordinary
Pensions 26,460 29,346 24,687 shares. No options lapsed during the year. All options are
- 77,117 70,748 69,597 exercisable at marker price (no discount) at grant.

Sir John Jennings The options with an expiry up to and including 2002 were
Salaries and fees - 450214 536322 exercisable from grant. The options expiting in 2008 are
Benefits - 7,381 17,381 not exercisable within three years of grant, and 50% of
Performance-related element - - 182,350 those options are subject to a performance condition.
Directors’ fees 25,000 - = (i) The middle market price of the Ordinary shares on
Commitiee fees 5,000 = - December 31, 1998 was 369p and the price range during
Holding company fees 18,883 - - the year was 316p to 464p.

. 48,883 457,595 736053  (jy) There were no changes in the above interests in oprions
Pensions 34433 16,875 - during the period from December 31, 1998 to March 9, 1999,
Realised share option gains 945,000 588,000 449 280

1,028,316 1,062,470 1,185,333

Professor R J O'Neill
Directors’ fees 25,000 22,500 20,000
Committes fees 5,000 3,750 5,625

30,000 26,250 25,625

Sir Ranald Oxburgh
Directors’ fees 25,000 22,500 19,516
Committee fees 9,516 3,750 1,875

34,516 26,250 21,391

Sir William Purves
Directors’ fees 25,000 22,500 20,000
Committee fees ©,333 5,600 4,675

34,333 28,100 24,675

Note: the performance-related element is included in the year to which it relates. Please see

Note 10 on page 16,
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Profir amd Loss Aorsunt Lmillion  Bofunce Shewt £ million
B - 1998 1997 1996 December 31 December 31
Income from shares in companies of the 1998 1997
Royal Dutch/Shell Group {Note 3) 1,3424 1,301.0 1,121.9  Fixed assets
Interest and other income 8.3 12.3 14.4  Investments B
1,350.7 1,313.3 11,1363 Shares {unllsfed] in companies of the
Administrative expenses 44 T b8 39 Royal Dutch/Sheli Group {Note 6) 13,4124 14,580.9
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,3463 1,306.5 1,132.4
Tax on prafit on ordinary activifies {Note 4) 1.2 2.6 3.4 Currentassets _ B,
Distributable profit for the year T,345.1 1,303.9 1,129.0 De*’g’_fid T ,
— - - ividends receivable from companies
{Siics::b;“:g:n‘:;g: rr::g;::j E;T:;?;L/ni os of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group 8154 791.5
of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group Other debtors 1.4 4.1
[Note &) {1,292.8) 4642 986.2 816.8 795.6
Earnings for the year Cash at bank
atiributable to shareholders 523 1,7681 21152 Shorkterm deposits B 61.9 142.0
_ Cash 26.0 13.8
Seatermont of Botuinod Probis £ million 904.7 951.4
1998 1997 1996 _ __
Distributable profit for the year 1,345.1 1,303.9 11,1290 Cred:ors: um;mnfs due w"h"“ one year
Distributable retained mounts due fo companies
profit at beginning of year 18.3 17.6 112.3 of the Royo'u Dutch/Shell Group 60.3 1295
13634 13215 12413 Corporation tox 0.4 0.2
deduct : : Unclaimed dividends o 6.9 6.4
Dividends on non-equity shuruérsﬂ{’Note 3 - Other crediror.f. and accruals 2.8 3.0
First Proference shares o1 01 o Preference dividends accrued 0.2 0.2
Second Preference shares 0.5 0.5 0.5 Ordinary dividend proposed 8154 795.5
0.6 0.6 0.6 885.0 934.8
13628 1,3209 12407 Neheurent assets 187 166
deduct —
Dividends on equity shares; Total assets less current liabilities 13,4311 14,597.5
25p Ordinary .:lares
Interim of 5.3p in 1998, 5.1p Capital and reserves R -
in 1997 and 4.8p in 1996 527.0 507.1 477.3  Equity interests
Proposed final of 8.2p in 1998, final Called-up share capital (Note 7)
of 8.0p in 1997 and 7.5pin 1996 815.4 795.5 7458 Ordinary shares - 2,485.9 2,485.9
13424 13026 1,223 Revaluation reserve {Note 6) 10,912.8 12,081.3
- Profit and Loss Account 20.4 18.3
Distributable retain 13,419.1 14.585.5
profit at end of year 20.4 18.3 17.6 -
Non-equity interests
Eornings per 25p Ordinary share® pence Called-up share capital [Note 7]
1998 1997 1994 First Preference shares 2.0 2.0
Distributable profit for the year 135 13.1 11.3 Second Preference shares 10.0 10.0
[Distributions from retained eurmngs)/ 12.0 12.0
Share of eornings retained by companies
of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group 113.0) 47 10.0  Shareholders' funds [Note 8 ) 13,431.1 14,597.5
Earnings for the year
attributable to shareholders 0.5 17.8 21.3

OF the earnings per shore amounts shown obove, which are disclosed in accordance with
Financiol Reperting Standard No. 14, those relafing 1o earnings for the year attributable to
shareholders are, in the opinion of the Directors, the most meaningful since they reflect the
Rull entitlement of the Company in the income of Group companies.

*On ¢,943,509,726 shares in issue after the capitalisation issue in June 1997. The amounts
shown for 1996 have been adjusted for this issue.

v

M Moody-Stuart, Chairman and Managing Director
March 11, 1999
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Statement of Bocognised Goins and Llosses £ million
1998 1997 1994

Distributable profit for the year 1,345.1 1,303.9 1,129.0

Unrealised surplus/|deficit] on revaluation

of investments in companies of the Royal

Dutch/Shell Group [Note &) {1,168.5) (2897} (317.5)

Total recognised gains and losses

relating to the year 1766 10142  Bl11.5

Statemant of Cash Plows £ million
1998 1997 996

Returns on investments

and servicing of finance

Dividends received from companies

of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group 1,3185 11,1432 11448

Interest received 9.9 11.6 14.4

Preference dividends paid (0.6) [0.6) {0.6)

Other B8 (5.2 (3.1)

Net cash inflow/[cutflow] from returns on

investments and servicing of finance 13,3240 11490 11,1555

Toxation

Tax {paid}/recovered (0.2} {6.5) [3.6]

Equity dividends paid

Ordinary shares {1,322.5) [1,252.9) {1,153.4)

Management of liquid resources

(short-term deposits)

Net cash inflow/[outflow] from

management of liquid resources 80.1 112.0 4.7)

Financing

Net increase/{decrease) in amounts due fo

companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group 69.2) 59 11.8

Increase/{Decrease) in cash 12.2 7.5 5.6

Cash at January 1 13.8 6.3 0.7

Cash ot December 31 26,0 13.8 6.3

Net debt, being amounts due to companies of the Royal Dutch/
Shell Group less cash, decreased duting 1998 from £115.7 million
to £34.3 million (1997: decreased from £117.3 million to
£115.7 million).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T decounting polices and comvantion
The accounting policies of The “Shell” Transport and Trading
Company, p.l.c. are explained in the relevant notes.

The Financial Statements on pages 13 to 16 herein have been
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and with
applicable accounting standards. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention modified by the revaluation of the
investments in companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group
(see Note 6). The disclosures described in Note 3 have been
derived from the Royal Dutch/Shell Group Financial Statements.

2 thy Compuny

The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, p.l.c., one of the
Parent Companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of
Companies, is a holding company which, in conjunction with
Royal Dutch Petroleum Company, owns, ditectly or indirectly,
investtnents in the numerous companies referred to collectively
as “the Group’”. Shell Transport has no investments in associated
undertakings other than in companies of the Group.

Arrangements between Royal Dutch and Shell Transport
provide, inter alia, that notwithstanding variations in
shareholdings, Royal Dutch and Shell Transport shall share
in the aggregate net assets and in the aggregate dividends and
interest received from Group companies in the proportion of
60:40. It is further arranged that the burden of all taxes in the
nature of or corresponding to an income tax leviable in respect
of such dividends and interese shall fall in the same proportion.

The 60:40 arrangements referred to above have been
supplemented by further arrangements, beginning with Group
dividends payable to the Parent Companies in respect of 1977,
whereby each Parent Company is to bring into account towards
its share in the 60:40 division of dividends from Group
companies tax credits and other tax benefits which are related
to the liability to tax of a Group company and which arise to
the Parent Company or which would arise to the holders of its
Ordinary shares if there were to be an immediate full onward
distribution to them of Group dividends (for which purpose
all such shareholders are assumed to be individuals resident and
subject to tax in the country of residence of the Parent Company
in question). The tax benefit to Shell Transport for the 1994
dividend through to the 1997 interim dividend amounted to
8% of total Group income divisible for 60:40 purposes.

In 1997 the UK government announced changes to tax law
in respect of company distributions, including the abolition of
advance corporation tax. In view thereof the Parent Companies
agreed that the tax benefit to Shell Transport for the 1997 final
dividend and the 1998 interim dividend would be 4% of total
Group income divisible for 60:40 purposes. It was also agreed
that as a result of the abolition of advance corporation tax
as from April 6, 1999 there would be no tax benefit to Shell
Transport for the 1998 final and subsequent dividends. This
has the effect of Shell Transport receiving the whole of its
entitlement in cash,




3 Shere in the Income und assels of Broup compunies

Shell Transport records income from shares in Group companies,
in the form of dividends, in its profit and loss account. The
Company’s investments in Group companies are stated at the
Directors’ valuation at an amount equivalent to Shell Transport’s
40% interest in the Group net assets as disclosed in the Group
Financial Statements on pages 44 to 65 together with 40% of
the cost of Parent Companies’ shares held by Group companies.
The difference between the cost and the amount at which the
investments are stated in the balance sheet has been taken to
Revaluartion reserve.

Shell Transport’s share in certain irems relacing to the three
Group Holding Companies, described in Note 6, is set out
below. The Group Holding Compantes own directly or
indirectly the investments, which, with them, comprise the
Group. The following supplementary information has therefore
been provided in respect of the Group Holding Companies in
the aggregate and is derived from the Group Financial Statements
on pages 44 to 65.

£ million
1998 1997 1996
33,440.2 41,908.8 44,013.6

Sales proceeds

Sales taxes, excise duties and similar
levies

Net proceeds

10,781.7 10,619.2 11,182.0
22,658.5 31,289.6 32,831.6

Operating profit after net currency

gains/losses 751.9 3,782.0 4,376.0
Interest and other income 152.1 222.8 238.0
Interest expense 3224 285.6 2672
Income before taxation 581.6 3,719.2 43468
Taxation 4626 11,8140 12,0020
Minority interests 344 10.8 68.4
Net incorne for the year 84.6 11,8944 22764

Fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Long-term tiabilities

19.941.4 19,584.0 19,1180
6,580.6 8,074.8 10,180.8
7,503.5 7,180.0 7.810.0

20913 19736 2,404

This supplementary information has been calculated in
conformity with the accounting policies on pages 47 to 49 of
the Group Financial Statements. These policies differ in certain
respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the
United Kingdom, the principal difference being in respect of
the provision for deferred taxation. If deferred taxation had been
provided in the Group Financial Statements under UK accounting
principles, it has been estimarted that Shell Transport’s share of
Group net assets would increase by approximately £1.3 billion
(1997: £1.7 hillion).

Shell Transport’s distributions from Group companies were
as follows:

£ million

el NR98 1997 1996

Distributions from Group companies and ' -
tax benefit referable therete 1,401.0 15163 1,402.3
deduct referable tax benefit 58.6 2153 2804
Distributions from Group companies 1,3424 1,301.0 1,121.9

4 Eoton profl on ovdinory aciviies

£ million
1998 1997 1996
Corporation tax at 31% (1997 31.5%
and 1996: 33%} in respect of interest
income less administrafive expenses 1.2 2.6 3.4

No taxation liability arises in respect of income from shares in
companies of the Group as this income consists of a distribution,
which is not subject to taxation, from a UK resident company.

Shell Transpott’s share of taxation borne by Group and
associated companies is given in Note 3.

5 Proferonce dividends

In accordance with the Finance Act 1972 dividends in respect
of the First and Second Preference shares were payable between
April 6, 1973 and April 5, 1999 at the rate of 3.85% per annum
and 4.9% per annum respectively. Under the Finance Act 1998
the dividend rights on the Preference shares for payments after
April 5, 1999 will be restored to the respective nominal coupon
rates of 5.5% per annum and 7% per annum.

& favestmand i Sroup componiag

Shell Transport has 40% equity shareholdings in The Shell
Petroleum Company Limited which is registered in England
and Wales (consisting of the whole of its 102,342,930 issued
“B” shares of £1 each) and in Shell Petroleum N.V., which is
incorporated in the Netherlands (consisting of the whole of its
44 issued “B” shares of N.fl. 5,000,000 each). The remaining
60% equity sharcholdings in these two companies (consisting
of 153,514,395 “A” shares of £1 each of The Shell Petroleum
Company Limited and 66 “A” shares of N.fl. 5,000,000 each
of Shell Petroleum N.V.) are held by Royal Dutch.

Shell Transport also holds 1,600 Class “B” shares of US $1
cach in Shell Petroleum Inc. which is incorporated in the State
of Delaware, USA. These shares, together with the 2,400 Class
“A” shares of US $1 each in that company held by Royal Dutch,
carry voting control of Shell Petroleum Inc. but are restricted
in regard to dividends to 12% of their par value per annum.
Shell Petroleum N.V. holds the remaining 1,000 shares of
US $1 each in Shell Petroleum Inc., which are unrestricted
in regard to dividends.

The Shell Petroleum Company Limited, Shell Petroleum
N.V. and Shell Petroleum Inc, own, directly or indirectly, the
investments representing the total Group interest in the other
companies which, with them, comprise the Group.
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& Ivestments in Group componin coniinuad
The Directors’ valuation of Shell Transport’s investments in

7 Shove cuplied
At December 31, 1998 the share capital of the Company was:

Group companies comprises the following: £
£ million Allotted, called-up
1998 1997 Authorised and fully paid
Cost of Shell Transport's investments Equity shares
in Group companies 178.4 178.4 Ordinary shares of 25p each 2,487,000,000 2,485,877,432
Shell Transport's share of Non-equity shares
Profits capitalised by Group companies 781.0 786.0 First Preference shares of £1 each 3,000,000 2,000,000
Earnings retained by Group companies 12,569.2 13,857.0 Second Preference shares of £1 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
Parent Companies’ shares held by Group 13,000,000 12,000,000
companies (168.7) - 2,500,000,000 2,497,877 432
Other comprehensive income {87.0)  [240.5)  The First and Second Preference shares {the Preference shares) confer on the helders the
Currency translation differences {29.2) —  right to a fixed cumulative dividend and rank in priority to Ordinary shares. On a liquidation

13,243.7 14,580.9

40% of cost of Parent Companies’ shares held
by Group companies 168.7 ~

13,412.4 14,580.9

From 1998 the Group Financial Statements are published in
US dollars instead of sterling, The effect is shown above in the
line “Currency translation differences”

The treatment of Parent Companies’ shares held by Group
companies has been changed in the Group Financial Statements
with effect from January 1, 1998. Such shares are no longer
included in the Group’s net assets and have been added back
to arrive at Shell Transport’s investment in Group companies.
This effect is shown in the line “Parent Companies’ shares held
by Group companies”

The movements in the Revaluation reserve are represented by:

£ million
1998 1997
12,081.3 14,0283

As at January 1

{Distributions from refained earnings)/Share of
earnings retained by Group companies out of net

the Preference shares also sank in priority fo the Ordinary shares for the nominal value of
£1 per share but do net have any further rights of participation in the profits or assets of the
Company. The Preference shares do not have voting rights unless their dividend is in arrears
or the proposal concerns o reduction of capital, winding up, an alteration of the Articles of
Association or otherwise directly affects their class rights.

8 Beconciliotion of movements In Sharsholdens’ funds

£ millien
1998 1997
Distributable profit for the year 1,345.1 1,303.9

Dividends

Unrealised surplus/{deficit} on revaluation of invesiments
in companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group {Note &) ({1,168.5}  (289.7)

Net addition to/{reduction in) Shareholders’ funds {1,166.4} [289.0}
Shareholders’ funds at January 1 14,597.5 14,886.5
Shareholders’ funds at December 31 13,431.1 14,597.5

(1,343.0} (1,303.2}

9 Aulitors’ romenerafion

Audir fees of Shell Transport amounted to £7,515 in 1998, £7,515
in 1997 and £8,350 in 1996. Other fees amounted to £7,130

in 1998, £4,080 in 1997 and £3,130 in 1996. All amounts are
stated exclusive of value added rtax.

income {1,292.8) 464.2
Share of other comprehensive income for Hr Aggregute Brectors” emoluments
the year 153.5 {753.9) £
Currency translafion differences (29.2) ~ 1998 1997 1996
(1,168.5}) {289.7}) Salaries, fees and benefits 1,350,691 1,315,862 1,131,431
Applied towards the capitalisation issue of Performancerelated element - 233,000 324,100
6,629,006,484 Ordinary shares of 25p each - {1,657.3} 1,350,691 1,548,862 1,455,531
(1,168.5} (1,947.0} _
‘Excess’ refirement benefits [Note v) 15,839 4,128 -
As ot December 31 10,9128 12,0813  Reglised shore option gains 1,347,783 1,355,880 1,010,880

The earnings rerained by Group companies have been, or will
be, substantially reinvested by the companies concerned and
any taxation unprovided on possible future distributions out
of any uninvested retained earnings will not be material,

The Company will continue to hold its investments in
Group companiecs. However, as the investments are stated in the
Balance Sheet on a valuation basis, it is necessary to report that,
if the investments were to be disposed of for the amount stated,
a taxation liability of approximately £756 million would arise
{1997: £1,238 million).

Notes

[i} With effect from 1998 the performance-related elements of Directors’ emoluments are
included in the year fo which they relate. The relevant figures for 1997 and 1996 have
been restated on a consistent basis. Prior to 1998, performancerelated payments were
not considered nor approved before finalisation of the accounts for the year under review.
Accordingly, amounis disclosed were those determined and paid in that financial year
but relating ta the prior financial year. Performance-related awards for Mr M Moody-
Stuart and Mr P Waits in respect of 1997, which were not available for inclusion in the
accounts of that year, were £132,750 and £100,250, amounting to £233,000 in total.

{i) The highest paid Director [including realised share option gains and exeluding pensions]
in 1996 was Sir John Jennings, and in 1997 and 1998 was Mr M Moody-Stuart.

{iii) The solaries and fees payable to Sir John lernings in 1997 includes a “full service
bonus” of £123,125. This bonus {maximum 25% annual salary] is paid on refirement
to all UK employees with qualifying service.

{iv] OF the emaluments disclosed £294,427 in 1998, £229,688 in 1997, and £202,94]
in 1996 were borae by Shell Transport and charged in the Profit and Loss Account,

_ {v) Excess retirement benefits are the amount of unfunded refirement benefits paid to or

receivable by Directors and past Directors which exceed these to which they were
entitled on the date on which the benefits first became payable or March 31, 1997,
whichever is the later,




DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

in respect of the preparation of financial statements

The Companies Act 1985 requires the Directors to prepare
accounts for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit ot loss
of the Company for that petiod. In preparing those accounts,
the Directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

«  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the accounts; and

»  prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is
inapproptiate to presume that the Company will continue
in business.

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure
thar the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

To the Members of The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, p.l.c.

We have audited the Financial Statements on pages 13 to 16.
We have also examined the amounts disclosed relating to the
emoluments, share options and pension benefits of the Directors

which form part of the Remuneration Report on pages 11 and 12.

Bespertive responsibilifes of Dlrsgion wnd Suditens

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
including as described above, the Financial Statements. Our
responsibilities, as independent Auditors, are established by
statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the
London Stock Exchange and our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Financial
Statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act. We also report to you
if, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with
the Financial Statements, if the Company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding Directors’
remuneration and transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annual
Report and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements ot material
inconsistencies with the Financial Statements.

We review whether the Statement on page 10 reflects the
Company’s compliance with those provisions of the Combined
Code specified for our review by the London Stock Exchange,
and we report if it does not. We are not required to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s corporate
governance procedures or its internal controls,

Busls of wadit epinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant ro the amounts
and disclosures in the Financial Statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made
by the Directors in the preparation of the Financial Statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Financial Statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity
or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the Financial
Statements.

Crpsiniom

In our opinion the Financial Statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company’s affairs at December 31, 1998
and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies

Act 1985.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
london, March 11, 1999




roup of Comfiunies

. THE BOARDS OF THE PARENT COMPANIES

The members of the Supervisory Board and the Board of Management of Royal Dutch Petroleum Company {(Royal Dutch} and the
Directors and Managing Directors of The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, p.l.c. (Shell Transport) meer monthly to receive

information and discuss the major developments within the Royal Dutch/Shell Group.

Royul Dutch Royal Dulch Shelt Transport

Supervisory Board Bourd of Moragement Board of Directors

1 L < van Wachem 8 M A van den Bergh 11 M Moody-Stuart

Chairman President and Managing Director Chairman and Managing Director

2 KV Cassani 9 SLMiller 12 P B Watls

3 JMHvan Engelshoven Managing Direcior Managing Director

4 AGJacobs 10 Jvon dgr Veer 13 Sir Antony Adond

Managing Director 14 T A Alireza

5 Jonkheer A A Loudon

& H de Ruiter 15 Dr E Buttie

7 JD Timmer 16 Sir Peter Holmes
17 $ir John Jennings
18 Professor R 1 O'Neill
19 Sir Ronald Oxburgh

20

Sir William Purves




GROUP MANAGING DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVES
OF THE SERVICE COMPANIES

The members of the Board of
Management of Royal Dutch and the
Managing Directors of Shell Transport
are also members of the Presidium of
the Board of Directors of Shell Petroleum
N.V. and Managing Directors of

The Shell Petroleum Company Limited,
which are Group Helding Companies.
As such, they are generally known as
Group Managing Directors. They are
also appointed by the Boards of Shell
Petroleum N.V. and The Shell Petroleum
Company Limited to a joint committee
known as the Committee of Managing
Directors, which considers and develops
objectives and long-term plans.

Steve Miller

Maarten van den Bergh  Mark Moody-Stuart

Jercen van der Veer

Phil Waitts

Group Managing Directors, their functional and geographic interests within the Committee of Managing Directors, and the
respective principal executives of the Service Companies.

51 Miller M A van den Bergh M doody-Shuort 1 von der Veer P B Watis
Vice-Chairman Chairman
Oil Products Downstream Gas and Corporate Advice Chemicals Exploration and Preduction
Power Generation Human Resources Renewables
Fmar.lce (including Legal Shell Services International
Pensions)
Social Investment Planning, Environment Hague and London Offices
and External Affairs
Group Research
Europe East Asia and Australasia USA and Canada CIS, Central and Eastern Western Hemisphere
Europe, Middle East and and Africa
South Asia
P D Skinner R M Cox P L Folmer L Brass P B Watts
Chief Executive — Group Controller Director — Legal Chief Executive — Chief Executive — Exploration
Oil Products S MG Hodge 1B Hofmeister Shell Services International and Production
Group Treasurer Director — Human Resources JW Dawson
K de Segunde C Mather RCh:‘eF EXEIC uhve =
Chief Executive — Director — Corporate Advice enewdbles
Downstream Gas and R J W Walvis E Henkes

Power Generation

Director — Planning,
Environment and

External Affairs

Chief Executive — Chemicals



Group matter

ON AND s-gnéoéﬂén :

Searching for oil and gas fields by means of
seismic surveys and exploration wells; developing
economically viable fields by drilli additional
wells and building the’ infrastruciire of pigelines
and treatment facilifies necessary for deliver;

the hydrocarbeons to market:

smer needs.

CHEM!CALE

Processing hydrocarbon feedstock:
al precursors of all manner
lastics,’ detergents, sol

o name but a few; supp

refining and pefrochemic




N IN 1998

BUTLOGK

FTRATEGY

~ portfolio was strengthened through o
of transactions. Shell Gil in the USA has
~vestigoting options to dispose of certain
wointventure interests and fo restructure the
int vénture. Cutbacks in the worldwide
-expenditure pregramme and reductions
Sower have been announced.

Crude ol prices are expected to remain low and
volafile. Over the next tive yedrs, gil production

and gas scles are planned to gr t a
average dnnual rafe-of 4% f ;
Increases in oil production dré expected from the
UK, the USA and Austrdlia, Increases in gas sales
are expected from Egypt dig
Philippiies and the K as w
Argentinidh acquisition &rd P

iKistan venture.

Maximise longterm value with increased
emphasis on shorHerm profitability, cost
leadership and production grawth. implémert
strategy through selective invéstments and active
porffolio management. Toke advidntage of the
globdl leverage of technology, resédich;: skills
and practi¢es to support:Group-companies as
the preferred poriner of both resource holders
and other companies in th S,

marksfing initiatives were aggressively
I: the infroduction of new fuels; changes
-y fetail networks are manoged; and an

on in the number of convenience stores —

g several stand.alone siores. Improvements . .-

grerational performance of refineries wer
wsued, learning from best practice be
e Group and within the industry o8 'a 4
il restructured its oil products business int
=/ jcint ventures: Equilon and Motiva:

High oilproduct inventories wilt continue to put
refining margins under pressure. In Eutope and
the USA an économic. slowdewn. dould affect
growth in oil demand and therefore limit any
improvement in margins. In the Asio-Pacific region

overcapacity will limit the scope for sustainable

drgin improvement in the near term. The intensity
F competition in retail markets is expected to
continue, éxerting pressure on gross marketing

~ margins for fuels.

Continue to focus on the customer, thereby -
identifying opporturiities for extensions to the

_ . product range and for innovative combinations
~-of prodicels:énd services. Improve profitdl'jili_?'. o

of exisfing ossefs by offering more premium tuels,
convenience stores ond site services. Maintain
emphasis on structural cost control, operational
excellence and active porffclioc management,
including refinery rofionalisation:

=nt with o major review of the porffelia, .

steps were announced: the fort
-gic alliance with ICl in the global rigid
thane foam market and the acquisition of
~oxylation unit and associated business in
the sale of Group interests in plastic pipe
cturing and generdl purpose rubber; the
hment of joint ventures with BASF, and
-owa Denko and Nippon Petrachemicals;

“expected to be under severe

Trading margins, and hence profitability, are
 pressure for moch of
1999. The possibilify of further @€dhsmic shocks
in the Asio-Pacific. region cannot be excluded, and
uncertainiy remdins about the effect of the region’s
recession or economie !

Facus the portfolic ‘on major crick
petrachemical building blocks and large-volime
polymers. Cansequently, reduce the number of
product businesses from 21 io'13 and cut the
capital employed by about 40%..The businesses
that remain will not only be consistent with
established skills but also share common ingredients
for success - leading fechnologies and the
copability to build and operate world-scale plants.

=i} acquired Tejos, a gas distribution
mrketing company. But parts of Tejos are
Korming as expecied, and the decisio
=en to portially sell and restructure
of its assets. The UK gas-marksting
=r bases of Total and Texaco were
=ed. The jointventure company

-n commissioned two new power sfdtions.

Being linked fo the price of oil; the price of gas
is.also fikely to remain at low levels. Current
investment plans have been scaled back, but they
rievartheless represent a substantial continving
commitment fo growing the business. Indeed,

_ the long-ferm growth prospects for gas and
- power demand are sfill judged to be good.

Grow the Business on the bdsis'ofequity gos, -
through construction of LNG plants and gas
transmission pipelines. Position the Business
through development of pipelines, power stations;
distribution systems and ehergy trading, and via
acquisitions. Become a leading player in the
deregulating gas and power markets, Capitalise
on the Business’s technology leadership.

investments continued in solar photovoliaics
ncturing capacity at Helmond in the
Bonds ond at Gelsenkirchen in Germany.
wants alsa were made in forestry assets in
" merica and in biomass in Norway.

Renéwable resources are expected to account
for between 5% and 10% of the world’s energy
supply within 25 years, perhaps rising fo as much

g5 50% by 2050. In the short term;, renewables . L

will compete-in niche markets, Cutside of thase
markets; they will continue to be supported by
government policies reflecting environmental.and
developmental concerns. LT

Build on the Group's-éxisting experience in
forestry, solar phatovoltaics and fuelcombustion
technologies. Gain o competitive advantagé’

in wind energy from Group skills in the design,
plémaritation and operation' of complex

. éngiheering projects.



22 Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
SUMMARY OF GROUP RESULTS

Financial Results $ million

1998 1997 1996
Net income 350 7,753 B,8BS
Change -95% -13% +28%
Earnings on an estimated current cost of supplies [CCS) basis 901 8,125 8,274
Change -89% 2%  +21%
Special credits/{charges) (4,245) Q4 148
Adjusted CCS earnings® - 5146 8,031 8,126
Change -36% -1%  +14%
Return on average capital employed” 28% 12.0% 12.0%

© Earnings on an estimated CCS basis excluding special tems,

® CCS earnings plus minority inferests plus intarest expense less tax on the interest expense as o perceniage of average

capital employed.
*Estimated to be 8.4% on adjusted CCS earnings basis.

Excluding special items, earnings on an
estimated current cost of supplies (CCS)
basis were $5,146 million, 36% below
the 1997 level. The decrease in adjusted
CCS earnings was mainly the result of
the 33% fall in crude oil prices and the
impact of the recession in the Asia-Pacific
region. Reported net income, which
includes the impact of special charges
totalling $4,245 million after tax, was
$350 million in 1998, The special charges
were due mainly to the impairment

of assets and to restructuring and
redundancy charges.

Cash flow provided by operating
activities amounted to $14,729 million,
some 12% below the 1997 figure.

Capital investment for the year totalled
$15,736 million, up 4% from 1997.




__ Royal Dutch/Shell Group ofllCémpaﬂ'es'

Segment Earnings &n o CC$ basis Crude Qil Prices Total Debt Rafio®
$ milion  [Brent Blend: average spot prices) $ per barrel %
0 & | 0 i o 19.3
8,125 14.5
: . . . 8274 15.1
1500 0 1,500 3,000 4,500 4,000 7500 9000 171
[_] Exploration and Production 167

# Downstream Gos ond Power Generation
B Oil Products

M Chemicols

1 Other and Corporate

Crude oil production — at 2.4 million
barrels a day — was 1% higher than in
1997; natural gas sales — at 7.9 billion
cubic feet a day — were 2% lower.
Compared with last year, oil product sales
volumes, including the Group share of
the volumes sold by Equilon and Motiva
in the USA, increased by 3%. Chemical
sales volumes increased by 2%.

In 1998 the price of Brent crude
averaged $12.75 a barrel, whereas a year
earlier it averaged $19.10 a barrel.
Although production restraint by
OPEC and certain non-OPEC countries
supported prices somewhat, it was not
enough to prevent Brent crude from
sinking in December below $10 a barrel
for the first time since 1986. Significant
upward movement in oil prices is unlikely

B9 90 %1 92 93 94 95 96 97 98

until the current inventory excess has
been cleared. Being linked to the price
of oil, the price of gas is also likely to
remain at low levels.

Average 1998 refining margins in the
Asia-Pacific region decreased to $1.35 a
barrel from $2.05 a barrel in 1997. This
reflects the decline in regional oil demand
combined with an emerging refining
capacity surplus. Average 1998 per-barrel
margins improved by $0.10, to $2.20,
in Europe and by $0.30, to $2.00, on
the US Gulf Coast. Margins in 1999
will remain under pressure from high
oil product inventories, particularly those
of distillates. In Europe and the USA a
possible economic slowdown could affect
oil demand growth and may restrict any
further upswing in the margins. In the

0 4 8 12 16 20
“Toral debst as a percentage of capital employed.

Asia-Pacific region the overcapacity will
limir the scope for sustainable margin
improvement in the near term.

The range and intensity of
competition in retail markets will
continue to eXert pressure on gross
marketing margins for fuels.

Chemicals trading conditions have
deteriorated compared with last year,
mainly because of the increasing
global impact of the recession in the
Asia-Pacific region.
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. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

Earnings for 1998

Excluding special items, 1998 earnings
amounted to $1,974 million — 57% less
than 1997 earnings. The main reasons for
the decrease were lower crude oil prices and
reduced natural gas realisations. Net income
for 1998, which includes the impact of
special charges totalling $2,221 million,
came to a loss of $247 million. The single
most important factor in determining the
special charges was the downward revision
in expectation of long-term sustained

prices used for investment evaluation and
impairment, to $14 a barrel for Brent

crude oil,

Excluding Shell Oil and Shell Canada,
earnings dropped by 71% from their
1997 level, to $971 million, Whereas
1997 earnings did not include any
special items, the 1998 earnings include
$729 million of special charges mainly

related vo asset write-downs in Venezuela
and the UK (both due in part to poor
reservoir performance), exploration
expense write-offs in Peru and various
redundancy charges. Excluding these 1998
special items, earnings were down 48%.
Shell Oil and Shell Canada earnings
in 1998 were severely affected by write-
downs in the USA, which totalled
$1.5 billion. These write-downs are
mostly related to impairment of assets in
Altura, the onshore Texas/New Mexico
joint venture, and in Aera, the
Californian joint venture. Excluding
special items, earnings declined by 79%,
to $274 million, mainly as a consequence
of the lower oil and gas prices. In the
case of Shell Canada, carnings were
also adversely affected by the lower
production volumes due ro asset
divestments during the year.

Paul Griffin stands on the helipad of
the Ram/Powell tension-leg pletform
in the Gulf of Mexico. With five
producing wells, the platform
processed an average of 45,370
barrels of oil and 268 million cubic
feet of gas each day. With the
completion of a sixth well, production
is expected to increase fo around
55,000 barrels of oil a day and
290 million cubic feet of gas & day.

Dwarfing the workers of its feet,
a1,250-tonne “topsides” was sased
down by a mammoth floafing crane
onto a new gas-production platform
in the Ketch field, in the southern
North Sea. The platform is designed
to handle as much as 180 million
cubic feet of gas a day flowing up
through as many as 12 wells from

a reservoir some 12,500 feet under
the sea.

1 -
§$ million

Earnings

998 1997 1996

Group exduding Shell Oil and
Shell Canada

Shell Qil and Shell Canada
Total segment earings
Special credits/[charges)
Adjusted segment earnings
Change

971 3,293 3,538
v,218) 1,276 1,333
[247) 4.569 4,871
{2,221) - 129
1,974 4569 4,742
-57% -4% n/o
4,767 5,302 6,019
1,591 1,154 1,117
1,735 5,775 5,983

Preduction costs®

Exploration expense®*

Taxation

°Excluding asseciated companies,
®Excludes depreciation and release of currency translation
differences.

Oil production and gas seles

Oil production was up 1%: increases
in some countries were almost entirely
offset by decreases in others. Those
countries reporting increases were the
USA, the UK, Syria and Malaysia;
those reporting decreases were Gabon,
Nigeria and Colombia. The production
decrease in Nigeria was mainly due to
community disturbances, whereas in
Colombia it was due to the divestment
of producing interests.

World-wide, gas sales decreased by
2%. Malaysta, in particular, lost sales
not only because of the suspension of
deliveries to the country’s Shell Middle
Distillate Synthesis plant, which was
shut down by an explosion at the end of
1997, but also because of the Asia-Pacific
crisis. In the USA gas sales were up 6%,
the increase coming largely from the
deep-water fields in the Gulf of Mexico.
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Lrude oif prices

The decline in oil prices, which started
in 1997 in reaction to the resumprion

of Iraqi exports (under UN auspices)

and increases in OPEC quotas, continued
throughout 1998. The deepening of the
Asia-Pacific crisis, continued oversupply
and mild winter weather in the Northern
Hemisphere forced stock levels higher.
Despite OPEC announcements to curtail
output by some 3 million barrels a day,
the world oversupply exerted downward
pressure on oil prices. Consequently, the
price of Brent crude decreased by $6.35
from its average 1997 price.

Capital investment

Major investments in the UK, Oman,
Egypt, Nigetia and Argentina were largely
responsible for the increase in capital
expenditure relative to 1997. Exploration

expenditure was also up significantly,
reflecting higher activity levels. In
reaction to the lower oil-price outlock
and harsh business environment,
however, capital investment plans

for future years have been reduced
substantially.

Reserves

During 1998 the Group’s total proved
reserves for oil (including natural gas
liquids) and natural gas increased from
19.4 to 20.5 billion barrels of oil
equivalent. (Definitions of reserves and
figures for 1996-1998 are given on pages
66 to 68.) The net additions to proved
reserves more than replaced the 1998
production, with replacement ratios of
some 140% for oil {(compared with
130% in 1997) and some 250% for
gas {compared with 210% in 1997).

A head-on view of a rotating drill bit
shows the swirling pattern ot drilling
“mud” — a thermdlly activated mud
emulsion (Tame], to be specific — that
sarves to lubricate the bit and sweep
rock cutfings away. Tave was developed
ot a Group research centre as an
affort fo combine the environmental
performance of water-based muds
with the hole-stabilising properfies of
traditional oil-based muds.

The lotest of Shell Oil Company’s
tension-leg platforms has been installed
in a water depth of 1,200 metres —
almost three fimes the height of the
world's tallest building, the Twin Towers
in Kuala Lumpur, The plafform will
process crude oil and natural gos from
the Ursa field in the Gulf of Mexico.

The additions to oil reserves arose mainly
from revisions in existing fields in
Nigeria, the UK and Oman, which were
partially offset by reductions in Venezuela
and the USA and by the disposition of
Colombian interests. The additions to
proved gas reserves result from increases
and revisions in existing fields and from
the acquisition of additional interests in
gas fields in Malaysia, the Philippines,
Bangladesh, Pakistan and Argentina.

Looking over the driller’s shoulder on
the Brent Charlie platform, one can
see the array of read-outs ond dials
that enable Kim to operate machinery
safely by remote control. The modern
drilling equipment was installed in a
maijor refurbishment that wos part of
the re-development of the massive
Brent field in the North Sea.










. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
OIL PRODUCTS

Earnings for 1998
On an estimated current cost of supplies
(CCS) basis, earnings excluding special
items rose from $2,213 million in 1997
to $2,235 million in 1998, an increase of
1%. Before financing costs, 1998 earnings
were 6% ahead of the year before.
However, there were special charges
of $207 million in 1998 compared
with $44 million in 1997. Accordingly,
CCS earnings fell from $2,169 million
to $2,028 million.

The special items in 1998 included
restructuting and redundancy charges
of $212 million, charges of $106 million
relating to asset disposals and impairment
and $64 million from a change in
accounting for start-up costs. Those
charges, however, were partially offset
by tax and other credits amounting to

$175 million.

Botled liquefied petroleum gas [LPG)
offers a clean, reliable energy source
in remate areas. The new LPG globel
arganisation will bring added focus

to this growth business.

In 1998 there were inventory
holding losses of $551 million, as prices
continued ro decline over the year.
(In 1997 inventory holding losses
amounted ro $372 million.)

Average 1998 refining margins in
the Asia-Pacific region decreased to $1.35
a barrel from $2.05 a barrel in 1997,
The drop reflected the decline in regional
oil demand combined with an emerging
refining capacity surplus. In Europe
average 1998 margins impraved by
$0.10 a barrel 10 $2.20 a barrel. On the
US Gulf Coast margins also strengthened,
rising by $0.30 a barrel to $2.00 a barrel.

Excluding Shell Oil and Shell Canada,
full-year 1998 CCS carnings excluding
special items were $1,839 million,
3% higher than in 1997. Earnings in
marketing, which provided the greatest
contribution to overall earnings,

A road tanker serves as a roving

CCS Earnings ' " § million
1998 1997 1996

gl:oup excluding Shell Oil and
Shell Canada 1,725 1,666 1,527

Shell Oil and Shell Canada 303 503 376
Total segment eamings 2,028 2,169 1,903
Special eredits/{charges) (207 [44) [173)

Adjusted segment eamings 2,235 2,213 2076
Change +% +7% n/a

benefited from higher unit net marketing
margins in all regions. Inland sales
volumes grew by 2%, as higher volumes
in Europe and Africa offset the impacr of
lower demand in the Asia-Pacific region.
The expansion of the number of
convenience stores, the restructuring

of dealer contracts and the intreduction
of new fuel differentiation initiatives

are examples of marketing programmes
which were aggressively pursued in 1998.
Refining performance also improved,
notwithstanding lower industry matgins
in the Asia-Pacific region and lower
overall utilisation as a result of reduced
throughput in Singapore and planned
maintenance shutdowns. These impacts
wete more than offset by higher
utilisation of convetsion capacity and
lower depreciation expenses. Unit
refining costs were unchanged despite

Every four seconds on average,
sarnevhere in the world, another
aeroplane is refuelled by Shell

Avigtion.

hillkoard for the praduct it is carcying,

Pura gasoling is super-refined for
customers who want the deanest petrol

available to belp reduce harmful

20% of unleaded-gasoline sales.

e

emissions. Only three months after its
launch in the Republic of Ireland, Pura
wass already accounting for as much as



=il Sales '
thousand barrels daily

{10,004
10,681
0
: 2,975

9,341

0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10,000 12,000
# Crude oif £ Middle distillates

W Gasolines Residues/Other

# Group share of Equilon and Motiva valumes

the higher planned maintenance
programme. Refinery intake was
5% lower than a year earlier.

Net special charges for 1998 were
$114 million compared with charges
of $120 million in 1997, Included in
the special items are provisions related
to the major restructuring programme in
Furope announced in November 1998
and to the impairment of the Shell Haven
refinery in the UK, which is scheduled
for closure by the end of 1999.

Shell Oil and Shell Canada earnings
excluding special items totalled
$396 million for 1998, $31 million below
those for 1997.

The effects of lower refining margins
in Shell Oil and higher financing costs
in both Shell Oil and Shell Canada
outweighed the benefits of increased
sales volumes in Shell Canada. Shell Oil

These children are learning an
important lesson as they p?cy the Shell
Traffic Game in Singapore. Fatalities
from rood accidents are increasing
world-wide, and Group companies
are working in several countries

to help children understand the
importance of rood sofety.

recorded special charges of $93 million
for environmental, litigation and
redundancy provisions; in 1997 it had
recorded special credits of $76 million.

In 1998 Shell Oil restructured its oil
products business into two new ventures,
Equilon and Motiva. Together, they hold
a significant position in the US refined
products industry.

Capital investment
Capital investment during 1998,
amounting to $2.9 billion, was lower
than in 1997, when it amounted to
$4.1 billion. The reduction can in part
be explained by the fact that the capital
expenditure within Equilon and Motiva
is not included in the 1998 figure. Even
so, capital expenditure in both refining
and marketing was down.

The only major refinery unit under

Oil Product Sales [excluding crude oil) thousand barrels daily
1998 1997 1996

Euvrope 1,842 1,754 1,717
Other Eastern Hemisphere 1,271 1,284 1,234
USA and Canada 2,143 1,862 1,763
Other Western Hemisphere 578 588 540
Export sales 952 1,072 1,042

6,786 4,560 6,316
Change +3%  +4%  +6%

¢ Includes Group share of Equilon and Motiva volumes
{1,070 thousand harrels daily).

construction is 2 new long-residue
catalytic cracker at the Port Dickson
refinery in Malaysia. In marketing outside
North America, investment in the retail
segment represented the major
proportion of expenditure, including

an increase in the number of “Select”
convenience stores. Group companies’
leading position in specialities — liquefied
petroleum gas, lubricants and bitumen —
was supported through continued
expenditure.

Cleanfiness and service are key
features of this oil-change cenire in
Argenfina - as they are in alf such
Shell Helix Express centres. Not anly
are the oil and oil filter changed, but
also 10 other free checks are carried
out for every customer — and all in just
15 minutes.

S
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Achievements
» Corterra polymiers, which ¢
carpets and textiles, were recogni

e

-

d new plants are planned
idia and Australia.

A, Singapore,

its Cortcrra polymers business,
Shell‘Chemicals greed to collaborate with the engineering
firm Lurgi Zimmer-AG to build low-cost, reliable plants
incorporating Shell technology. The first is planned to be
focated in Altamiig;:Mexi
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. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

CHEMICALS

Eornings for 1998
After adjusting for special items,
1998 earnings were $452 million.
In 1997 adjusted earnings amounted to
$903 million. Whereas special items in
1997 were a credit from the sale of assets
amounting to $66 million, special items
in 1998 were a charge of $1,170 million.
The 1998 special charges relate mainly
to provisions for asset impairments,
restructuring and redundancies resulting
from the decisions to dispose of a
significant portion of the portfolio and
to embark upon a further programme
of cost reductions. Other special items
included recognition of deferred tax
benefits, a change in accounting for
start-up costs and provision for a
litigation settlement.

Training exercises af the “Fire School”
in the USA — in which not only Shell
personnel but also members of local
fire departments take part — ensure
that the emergency response of Group
chemicals manufacturing sites is quick

and effactive.

Unadjusted, earnings for 1998
amounted to a loss of $718 million,
compared with a profit of $969 million
in 1997.

Chemicals sales volumes increased by
2% over 1997 levels, reflecting increased
production capacity — even though sales
of polyethylene were not included in
the figure following the transfer of that
business into Elenac, a joint venture
with BASE in March 1998.

Underlying fixed costs continued to
decline, reflecting the results of continued
cost-reduction activities. Moreover,
the cost of feedstocks fell significantly.
Nevertheless, a rapid decline in sales
prices far outstripped the beneficial effects
of reductions in fixed costs and feedstock
prices, significantly depressing both
absolute and unit margins. This fall in

Earnings $ million
1998 1997 1996
718) 969 897

Segment eamings

Special eredits/[charges) {1,170 66 132
Adjusted segment earnings 452 903 745
Change -50% +18% n/o

product prices affected all major areas of
the Chemicals business, but particularly
badly affected were sales of polypropylene
in the USA.

The deterioration of trading conditions
was caused partly by additional industry
capaciry and partly by the impact of the
recession in the Asia-Pacific region.

The Asia-Pacific recession had an
increasingly global impact during the
year. Not only did it reduce local demand
for petrochemicals, so reducing imports
into the region, but also low-priced
Asia-Pacific products became available
elsewhere in the world.

Capital investment

Capital investment in 1998 was

$2.0 billion; in 1997 it was $2.5 billion,
including the acquisition of the remaining

Claude Burnod keeps in radio
contact with colleagues ot the
chemicals complex in Berre, France.
The complex includes plants operated
on behalf of Elenac, the polyethylene
joint venture with BASF, and Montell,
the Group-awned polypropylene

business.
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Chemictls Sales Proceeds Chemical Sales Volumes
$ million thousond tonnes
12,272 19,984
8 285 19,510
£ 14,006 19,341
g 14,594 17,485
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50% of Montell. Significant capital
investment items in 1998 included: the
creation of Elenac, a polyethylene joint
venture with BASF; the establishment of
Infineum, a petroleum additives joint
venture with Exxon; and the joint venture
with BASF to construct a world-scale
styrene monomer/propylene oxide plant

at Moerdijk, the Netherlands.

Future portfolie

The portfolio of the future will focus on
major cracker products, petrochemical
building blocks and large-volume
polymers. As a consequence, the number
of product businesses will be reduced
from 21 to 13 and capirtal employed will
be reduced by about 409%. The future
portfolio will thus comprise a set of major
linked petrochemical businesses in

wash loads

Every day, 66 million wash loads of
loundry in the USA are washed with
the help of Shell Chemicals products.
Specifically, Neodol* aleohols are
used to make the surfactants that
give detergents their cleaning power.

*Neodol is a Shell trade mark.

Base and intermediates
# Performance products

Differentiated products

acquisition of ICI’s ethoxylation unic

and associated businesses was announced.
Contracts for the sale of the general-
purpose rubber business to Dow
Chemical Company have been signed.
Montell also announced its intention to
form a polypropylene joint venture in
Japan with Showa Denko and Nippon
Petrochemicals,

which Group companies possess leading
technologies and the proven capability
to build and operate world-scale plants.

Consistent with this strategy, a
partner is being sought for Montell
and several other businesses have been
purt up for sale.

Other steps following this strategy
have already been taken, although some of
them require relevant regulatory approval.
Shell Chemicals announced its intention
to form a strategic alliance with ICI
in the global rigid polyurethane foam
market and to sell its 50% share in
WAVIN, Europe’s largest manufacturer
of plastic pipe systems, to CVC Capital
Partners. A letter of intent to form a joint
venture with BASF for the production of
styrene monomer and propylene oxide in

Singapore was signed. In the UK the

Standing at the door of her home
near Daya Bay in south-east Ching,
a teddler may soon wilness the
benefits of economic investment.

For the Chinese government has
given its official approval to proceed
with the development there of a
pefrochemical complex in which

a Group company will act as the

lead pariner.
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- OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
DOWNSTREAM GAS AND POWER GENERATION

Barnings for 1998

Results are separately reported for this
segment for the first time. Adjusted 1998
carnings were $234 million. But special
items — particularly the write-down of
certain assets in the USA ~ bring
unadjusted earnings to a loss of

$349 million.

Excluding Shell Oil and Shell Canada,
reported earnings of $350 million
included a net special credit of $66 million
related to an insurance recovery for the
incident at the Shell Middle Distillace
Synthesis (SMDS) plant in Malaysia
in the fourth quarter of 1997.

Adjusted 1998 earnings were
$284 million, $39 million above the
previous year. Several items contribured
to the increase, including an enhanced
dividend from Ruhrgas, a German gas
transmission and distribution company
in which the Group holds an interest.

The gas-fired power plant ot
Samalayuca, Mexico, is another of
InterGen’s projects. By virtue of ifs
50% stake in InterGen, the Group has
made good on its commitment to enter
the power industry.

However, other factors partly offset the
increase: lower prices for liquefied natural
gas (LNG) in the Asia-Pacific region and
business development costs.

Shell Qil and Shell Canada carnings
amounted 1o a loss of $699 million,
The loss resulted primarily from special
charges amounting to $649 miilion,
mainly from the write-down of certain
Tejas assets that ate held for sale as a
result of a significant downturn in
business conditions and a strategic review.

Capital investment

Shell Oil acquired Tejas in January for
$1.4 billion, but trading circumstances
have since depressed its profitability.
Construction continued on schedule
at two LING plants, one in Nigeria and
the other in Oman. In Brazil a share in
the Cuiaba power plant and pipeline
was acquired.

The Bunsen burners used by chemistry
students at Edinburgh University are
supplied with natural gas by Shell
Gas Direct. The company markets
Shell UK's North Sea gas production
not only to power stations but alse

to commercial and educational
inshitutions.

Earnings

WeB 1997 1996

Group excluding Shell Oil and
Shell Canada 350 245 264

Shell Oil and Shell Canada (699} - -
Total segment earmings (349 245 264

Special credits/{charges} (583) - -
Adjusted segment earnings 234 245 264
Change -4% -7% n/a

Shell Gas Direct in the UK expanded
its industrial and commercial customer
base through the purchase of Texaco’s and
Total’s UK gas marketing interests to
become one of the top five gas suppliers
in the country.

Giher significant events

Rebuilding of the SMDS plant
commenced; the plant is expected

to resume operations in 2000 with

an increased capacity, In Brazil a
Memorandum of Understanding was
signed with Petrobras on a proposed
LNG terminal and power plant at Suape,
InterGen, in which the Group holds a
50% interest, commenced operations at
its first power plant, at Rocksavage in the
UK. Another InterGen-developed plant —
at Samalayuca, Mexico — also started up
in 1998.

World-wide, every long-term liquefied
natural gas (NG} supply and purchase
contract concluded in 1998 was signed
by Group-advised NG suppliers. The
total contracted supply of 3.2 million
tonnes per annum added some 4% ta
the total global ING trade — and this in
a difficult business environment.
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OTHER INDUSTRY SEGMENTS AND CORPORATE

Renewnbles

Nineteen ninety-eight is the first full year
of operation as a core Business. For the
established operations in solar energy and
forestry, the business environment was
very difficult. The weakened demand for
wood for the paper and pulp industry
caused wood prices to fall by 10% between
1997 and 1998. After a 34% increase

of global photovoltaic module demand
between 1996 and 1997, growth in

1998 slowed unexpectedly to below 10%.
This resulted in a decline of some 20%
in prices.

Capital investment for the year
amounted to $67 million, which
included solar and biomass energy
investments in Europe and forestry
investments in South America.

Ernesto Siles paints out features on
one of the Shell photovoltaic panels
incorporated info the 10,000 home
solar systems being installed in the
rural Santa Cruz area of Balivia.
The systems have been designed
for use in remote areas lacking

a connection to the national
electricity grid.

Coul
Equity production from all mines rose
11% to 14.2 million tonnes. This increase
in production, combined with improved
cost performance from the Australian
mines, offset the lower prices due to
the Asian economic downturn and
oversupply in the Asia-Pacific market.
Two major projects, the Moranbah
North coking coal mine and the Callide
C power station, were progressed on
schedule. Capital investment for the
year totalled $118 million.

Corporate
Earnings increased by $176 million, from
$51 million in 1997 to $227 million in
1998. In 1997 there was a net special
charge of $110 million in respect of a
provision by Group insurance companies.
Excluding Shell Oil and Shell Canada,
net interest income decreased by
$34 million, to $752 million, mainly as
a result of an increase in interest expense,
and there was a reduction of $130 million
in currency exchange losses; these effects
were partly offset by increased spending
on corporate identity in Shell Qil.

Trevor Wignall tends 1o tree cuttings
floating in a nutrient solution at the
East Malling Research Centre. Up o
200 eucalyptus saplings ore produced
in this way from each bote at o rate
30 lim;qf);sier than conventionod
tissue culture techniques.



OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Statemnent of Cash Flows

Cash flow generated by operations
decreased from $16.7 billion in 1997

to $14.7 billion in 1998, of which

$12.5 billion was reinvested in the
businesses. After payment of dividends
of $5.8 billion to the Parent Companies,
Royal Dutch and Shell Transport,

there was a deficit before financing of
$3.6 billion. (For comparison, in 1997
there was a deficit of $2.0 billion, and
in 1996 a surplus of $1.6 billion.) The
dividends paid to the Parent Companies
increased by 13%.

Within cash flow generated by
operations, working capital decreased
by $3.4 billion compared with a decrease
of $2.8 billion in 1997,

Capital expenditure and new
investments in associates increased by
$0.1 billion, to $14.1 billion. Proceeds
from sales of assets and disposals of
investments in associates contributed
$1.8 billion to cash flow. {In 1997 such
proceeds amounted to $1.6 billion.)
There was net new botrowing of
$1.9 billion,

The ner effect of this flow of funds
for the year as a whole was a decrease of
$1.6 billion in cash and cash equivalents.

Finandial condition

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
securities were $2.7 billion at the end of
1998, down $2.4 billion on 1997, whilst
the total of short- and long-term debt
increased by $3.2 billion to $13.8 billion.
The total debr ratio increased from
14.5% in 1997 to 19.3% in 1998.

Net assets decreased by $5.4 billion
to $55.0 billion during the year. Fixed
and other long-term assets increased by
$1.5 billion ro $87.5 billion. Net current
assets excluding cash, cash equivalents,
short-term securities and short-term delst
decreased nearly $2 billion. Provisions
decreased by $1.5 billion to $12.6 biilion
during the year, mainly because of the tax
effects resulting from asset impairment
write-downs.

Capital Investment

$ million
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Capital investment
Group companies’ capital expenditure,
exploration expense and new investments
in associated companies rose by
$0.6 billion to $15.7 billion, an increase
of 4% compared with 1997 but 10%
below last year’s forecast. Exploration and
Production expenditure — at $8.4 billion,
representing an increase of $1.1 billion
on last year — accounted for more than
half of this total. Oil Products investment
decreased by $1.2 billion compared with
1997. Chemicals investment was
$2.0 billion, which is $0.5 billion lower
than in 1997, In Downstream Gas and
Power Generation there was a capital
investment of $2.1 billion, mainly
related to the acquisition of Tejas.

Capital investment in 1999 is
expected to show a significant reduction
(of the order of 30%) on 1998 levels.
Exploration and Production remains the
major clement of capital investment.

The Group companies’ investment
programme is expected to be financed
largely from internally generated funds.
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OTHER MATTERS

Internal confrols

The Royal Dutch/Shell Group of
Companies has a number of control
instruments thar are considered to
provide a reasonable balance between a
comprehensive internal control structure
and the need for a strong entrepreneurial
decentralised culture. The primary
control mechanisms are self-appraisal
processes in combination with strict
accountability for results. These
mechanisms are underpinned by a
number of checks and balances including
mandatory policies, procedures (within
the framework of the Royal Dutch/Shell
Group of Companies’ Statement of
General Business Principles), and appraisals
and reviews.

Business control reviews of Group
companies are regularly carried out to
demonstrate to the Group Holding
Companies and the Group Audit
Committee (comprising three members
of the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch
and three non-executive Directors of
Shell Transport) that controls of the
key business processes are in place and
operate effectively. There is an annual
review and appraisal process as part of
the planning cycle and a formal Letter
of Representation process in respect of
over 1,900 companies. The Letter of
Representation, which was introduced in
1978, is a declaration by the management

of each of these companies regarding

the operation of sound financial controls,
the proper recording of transactions

and any instances of bribes or illegal
payments. The results of this process and
any qualificarions made are reviewed by
the Group Audit Committee and support
representations made to external auditors.

Ervironmento! and decommissioning costs
Group companies operate in over
130 countries throughout the world
and are subject to a number of different
environmental laws, regulations and
reporting requirements. It is the
responsibility of each Group company
to implement a health, safety and
environmental management system that
is suited to its particular circumstances.
The costs of prevention, control,
abatement or elimination of releases into
the air and water and disposal and
handling of wastes at operating facilities
are considered to be an ordinary part of
business. As such, these amounts are not
accounted for separately, An estimate of
the order of magnitude of amounts
incurred in 1998 for Group companies in
Europe, North America and Africa, based
on allocations and managerial judgement,
is $700 million. (In 1997 such an
estimate amounted to $1,200 million.)
Expenditures of a capital nature to
limit or monitor hazardous substances or

releases include both remedial measures
on existing plants and integral features of
new plants. Whilst some environmental
expenditures are discrete and readily
identifiable, others must be reasonably
estimated or allocated based on technical
and financial judgements which develop
over time, Consistent with the preceding,
estimated environmental capital
expenditures made by companies with
major capital programmes during 1998
were $600 million (1997: $600 million).
Those Group companies are expected to
incur environmental capital costs of at
least $800--900 million per year during
both 1999 and 2000.

It is not possible to predict with
certainty the magnitude of the effect of
required investments in existing facilities
on Group companies’ future earnings,
since this will depend amongst other
things on the ability to recover the higher
costs from consumers and through fiscal
incentives offered by governments.
Nevertheless, it is anticipated that over
time there will be no material impact on
the total of Group companies’ earnings.
These risks are comparable to those faced
by other companies in similar businesses.

At the end of 1998, the total liabilities
being carried for environmental clean-up
were $513 million (1997: $683 million),
whilst additions to provisions in 1998
amounted to $53 million.
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OTHER MATTERS

Environmental ond decommissioning costs
continued

Provisions being carried for
expenditures on decommissioning and
site restoration, including oil and gas
platforms, amounted to $2,601 million
(1997: $2,324 million).

Employees

Overall, the number of employees

in Group companies is expected to
decline over the next year or two as

the companies continue their efforts

to streamline operations and as certain
businesses are sold or transferred o
associated joint ventures. The decline,
however, will not be uniform for all
companies: in certain activities and areas
personnel numbers might well increase.
Group companies will still need to recruic
many people every year around the world.

Risk management

As further discussed in Note 26 on pages
64 and 65, Group companies, in the
normal course of their business, use
financial instruments of various kinds for
the purposes of managing exposure to
currency, commodity price and interest
rate movements. The Group has
Treasury Guidelines applicable to all
Group companies, and each Group
company is required to adopt a treasury
policy consistent with these guidelines.

These policies cover financing structure,
foreign exchange and interest rate risk
management, insurafice, counterparty
risk management and derivative
instruments, as well as the treasury
controls framework, Wherever possible
the Group secks to centralise treasury
operations in specialist central
organisations without removing from
each Group company the responsibility
to formulate and implement appropriate
treasury policies.

Each Group company measures its
foreign currency exposures against the
underlying currency of its business
(its ‘funcrional currency’), reports foreign
exchange gains and losses against its
functional currency and has hedging
and treasury policies in place which are
designed to minimise foreign exchange
exposure so defined. The functional
currency for most upstream companies
and for other companies with significant
international business is the US dollar,
but other companies normally have their
local currency as their functional currency.

The financing of most Group
Operating Companies is structured on
a floating-rate basis and, except in
special cases, further interest tate risk
management is discouraged.

Apart from forward foreign exchange
contracts to meet known commitments,
the use of derivative financial instruments

by most Group companies is not
permitted by their treasury policy.

Some Group companies operate as
traders in crude oil, natural gas and oil
products and use commodity swaps and
options as 2 means of managing price and
timing risks arising from this trading. In
effecting these transactions the companies
concerned operate within procedures
and policies designed to ensure thar risks,
including those relating to the default of
counterparties, are minimised.

Other than in exceptional cases, the
use of derivative instruments is generally
confined to specialist oil trading and
central treasury organisations which have
appropriate skills, experience, supervision,
and control and reporting systems.

The Group’s Operating Companies
insure against most major property and
liability risks with the Group’s captive
insurance companies. These captive
insurance companies reinsure part of
their major catastrophe risks with a
variety of international insurers,

The effect of these arrangements is
that uninsured losses for any one incident
are unlikely to exceed $400 million.

Year 2000 readiness disclosure

The Group Year 2000 programme covers
four areas: information technology (IT)
applications; associated IT infrastructure,
including communications; industrial
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automation (embedded chips); and the
business supply chain. Progress by Group
companies on Year 2000 issues continues
to be monitored quarterly by the
Committee of Managing Directors.
Costs from the start of 1997 through

to resolution of the issue are estimared

at $600 million, These costs are being
expensed as incurred.

The large majority of Group companies
have planned to complete their work
on critical systems by the end of the
second quarter of 1999, and most of the
remainder by the end of the third quarter.

The focus of 1999 is to complete the
outstanding remedial work. Additionally,
the programme will concentrate on
business continuity and contingency
planning and testing, for which Group
guidelines have been developed.
Workshops are being held world-wide
to support this phase. Work to assure
supply-chain continuity will continue
throughout 1999.

There are factors outside the Group’s
sphere of influence, such as extended
supply chains and uneven global
readiness. Contingency plans are being
developed to cater for any disruptions
that may result from them. In many
countries Group companies are working
closely with governments, utilities and
energy companies to minimise the impact
on infrastructure services.

Impoct of the euro

Group companies have operations in all
11 countries participating in the
Economic and Menetary Union (EMU)
and in those which are expected to
participate in the second wave. All of the
main business segments are represented in
the euro zone. Operations in the zone
account for a significant amount of the
Group's total business.

During the transitional period there
is no compulsion for companies to use
the euro for transactions nor is there
any prohibition of its use: market forces
will be the driver. It is the Group’s
strategy to be ready to transact in euro
during the transitional period upon
request of the customer in those markers
where such demand is expected. The
transitional period lasts until the end
of December 2001,

There are perceived continuing
benefits to the Group arising from the
introduction of the euro, against which
may be offset certain costs and risks
associated with implementation.

The introduction of the euro will
simplify all financial operations, will
exclude exchange risks between currencies
of participating member states and
will reduce various transaction costs,

In general, business will benefit from
a stable EMU area.

Long-term competitiveness could
be affected by the results of price
transparency created within the euro
zone by the single currency; ir is not
currently possible to make an accurate
assessment of the overall impact of this
development for the Group.

The Group has been making
preparations for the introduction of the
euro since 1996. Costs include the cost
of system modifications, preparing and
converting retail sites and project staffing
costs. Implementation costs have already
been incurred and will continue during
the next few years. Costs are expensed
as incurred.

Coutionary stafement

The forward-looking discussion and
analysis in this Report contains statements
that are subject to risk factors associated
with the oil, gas, chemicals, power
generation, renewable resources and

coal businesses. It is believed that the
expectations reflected in these statements
are reasonable, but they may be affected
by a variety of variables which could
cause actual results or trends to differ
materially, including, but not limited to:
price fluctuations; currency fluctuations;
drilling and production results; reserve
estimates; loss of market; environmental
risks; physical risks; and legislative,

fiscal and regulatory developments.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

To Royal Dutch Petroleum Company and
The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, p.l.c.

We have audited the Financial Statements appearing on

pages 44 to 65 of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies
for the years 1998, 1997 and 1996. The preparation of
Financial Statements is the responsibility of management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Financial
Statements based an our audirs,

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Financial Statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
Financial Statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management in the preparation of Financial Statements, as
well as evaluating the overall Financial Statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the Financial Statements referred to above
present faitly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies at December 31,
1998 and 1997 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1998 in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the Netherlands and the United States.

KPMG Accountants N.V., The Hague

PricewaterhouseCoopers, London

March 11, 1999
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\L STATEMENTS

Statoment of Income = ’§ million
1998 1997 1996
Sales proceeds : 138,274 171,657 171,964
Sales taxes, excise duties and similar levies 44,582 43,502 43,65
Net proceeds 93,692 128,155 128,313
Cost of sales - . 100,394 99,451
Grossproft . . 7761 28,862
'._':Séiliﬁg.and distribution expenses 10,9281 11,043
Ad e expenses 1,133
Exploration.. s 1,173
Research and development 662
Operating profitof Group _ 13,812
Share of operating proflt/ ( associated companies {Noh 2,130
Operating profit : i 15,942
Interest and. other income {(Note 7} S 9120
Interest expense [Note Bj 1,333 1,170
Currancy exchange gains/{losses} e {465)
2,405 15,219
113 P A2E 7,819
492 424 9,153
142 44 267
350 7,753 = 8,886
$ million
1998 - 1996 . -
Net income {Note 3] 350 8,886
Other comprehensive ircome, net of tax [Note 5)
currency translation differences (Note 19) 482 377
________ unrealised gains/(losses] on securities 169 -
.~ ““minimum pension liobility adjustments {13) 12}
mprehensive income 988 9,261
- Net distributions fo Parent Companies' [Nole 3} : 212 {5,853 S {5,036)
ies’ shares held by Group companies utJanuary 1, 1998 [Note 24} [490 .
 of Parent Companies” shares by Group companies [Nate 24) {210
Parent Compun terest in Group net-assels at January | 60,386 63,006 58,7817
Pgrent Companies”interest f 54,962 60,386 63,006

Applicable to:

Rayal Dutch {60%)

37,804

Shell Transport ~ {40%)

. 25,202

63,006
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Statement of Assets and Liabilites R i $illion
. Deesmber 31 Decamber 31
1998 1997
Fixed casehs — -
60,777
2,609
“““““““ associated companies. (Note &) - : : 16686 = 13,034
sacurities {Note 14] 1,664 1,476
other LA _ _ 1,022 1,029
Total fixed assets ' 82,758 81,107
Other long-term assets (Note 11} ... o . 4,711 » 4,867
Current assets
Inventories (Nofe 12) : : ’ ) ) 5,976 7,509
Accounts receiveble [Note 133 - oo e ' ' 13,887 15,892
Shortterm securities (Note 24} : Bl 19 869
Cash ond cash equivalents’ {N’ ________ 2,717 4,306
Total current assets ; 22,599 28,876
Current liabilities: amounts dueé wi e . . :
Shortterm debt IN t 15} _ 7,778 4,795
VVVVVVVV ' T 15,875 16,742
4,053 4,744
3,434 3,456
Total current liabilities 31,140 29,737
Net currant assets ] fiabiifios) - 8,541 el
Total assets less current liabilities : 78,928 84,513
Long-term liabilities: amounts diie ofler more than one year
Long-ferm debt {Note 15) - e e it 4032 - 5812
Othar {Note 18] ' 2,647 2,362
) : 8,679 8,174
Provigons T o
Deferred taxation [Note 9} 7,155
Pensicns and similor obligations [Note 21} 2,830
Decommissioning and résforolion ‘cdsts . S 2,601
o Ce ' 12,586
Group riet assets before minority inferests B 57,563 63,602

Minority interests _ 2,701 2,216

Net assets — 54.962 40386




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$ million

Statement of Cash Flows {she Mate 19 -
1996

Cash flow provided by : operating activities -

Met § incoma

8,886

ile nei income to cash flow pr
n and amorhschon (No_

inventfories
atcounts receivable
accounts payable and accrued liabilifies

: Cu'sh.ng: used in investing qcﬁwhé

e fincluding caplfahsed leases)] {No (12,859) {12,274) {11,023}

1421 1,035 . 1,372
P28 “1.728) 770)
_Bisposals of investments in associated companies e e 32 187
s N4 185

712,500 [13.605 110,049}

‘New invesimenis in ussocuoled compclmes [Note 6}

Other investments
Cash How used in investing activities

Cush How provided by/(used in} financing activities -

Long torm debt {including sharkterm’ pnrl}

“new borrowings 917
repayments {1,715}
[798)

lef increase/ {decrease] in short: term debt
Minority interests

“&6a)

Cash Aow provided by/{used in) finoncmg achvnhes
Dividends paid to: ' -
Pq;@nr Companies (5 819 15,129) e 14,999
Minarity inferests {171_'_1] : {253} o [1'5_0]:'_
126
Increase/ (Decrense.lm:.n cosh and ¢ cas equ:vulen!s ” 943
Cash and cash equnvulenis utjanuury 1 . 6,738

Cashand cash equivd




Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Com

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 The Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies

‘The Parent Companies, Royal Dutch Petroleum Company
{Royal Dutch) and The “Shell” Transport and Trading
Company, p.Lc. (Shell Transport) are holding compamcs which
together own, directly or indirectly, investmerits in numerous
companies known collectively as the Royal Dutch/Shell Group.
Group companies are engaged i’

regulatory and political conditions.

Arrangements between Royal Dutch and Shell Transport
provide, inter alia, that notwithstanding variations in
shareholdings, Royal Dutch and Shell Transport shall share in
the aggregate net assets and in the aggregate dividends and
interest received from Group companies in the proportion of
60:40. It is further arranged that the burden of all taxes in the
nature of or corresponding to an income tax leviable in respect
of such dividends and interest shall fall in the same proportion.

The 60:40 arrangemerits referred to above have been .
supplemented by further arrangements; beginning with Group
dividends payable to the Parent Companies in respect of 1977,
whereby each Parent Company is to bring into dccoint to¥ afds
its share in the 60:40 division of dividends from Group )
companies tax credits and other tax benefits which are related
to the liability to rax of a Grotip tompany and which arise to
the Parent Company or which would arise to the holders of its
ordinary shares if there were to be an immediate full onward
distribution to them of Group dividends (for which purpose all
shareholders are assumed to be individuals resident and subjcct
to tax in the country of residence of the Parerit Company in
question). The tax benefit to Shell Transport 1994
dividend throtigh'to the 1997 interim dividend amounted
to 8% of total Group inconie divisible for 60:40 purposes.

In 1997 the UK government announced changes to tax law
in respect of company distributions, including the abolition
of advance corporation tax (ACT). In view thereof the Parent
Compariies agreed that the tax benefit to Shell Trafisport for the
1997 final dividend and the 1998 interim dividend would be
4% of rotal Group income divisible for 60:40 purposes. It was
also agreed that as a result of the abolition of ACT as from
April 6, 1999 there would be no tax benefit to Shell Transport
for the 1998 final and subsequent dividends. This has the effect
of Shell Transport receiving the whole of its entitlement in cash.

2 Accounting policies n

Nature of the Financial Statements

The accounts of the Parent Companies are not included in the
Financial Statcmcnts, the objective of which is to demonstrate
the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of a
group of undertakings in which each Parent Company has an
interest in common whilst maintaining its separate identity.
The Financial Statemiénts reflect an aggregation in United States
dollars (“dolais”) 6f the accounts of companies in which Royal
Durch and Sheil Transport together, either dlrectly or indirectly,
have control either through a majority of the voting rights or
the right to exercise a controlling influence. [nvestments in
companies over which Group companies have significant
influence but not control aie classified as associated companies

1¢ipal aspects of the oil .
and natural gas business throughout the wotld They also have . " -
substantial chemical intereses. These activities are conducted in . . -
more than 130 countries and are subject to changing economic,

and the capitalisation of certain software costs.

and are accounted for on the equity baszs Ccrta.:n joint ventures
are taken up in the Financial Statements in proportion to-the"
relevant Group interest. '

The Financial Statements have bccn prepared under the
historical cost convention. They have been prepared in all
material respects in accordance with generally accepted -
accounting prmc1pfcs in the Netherlands and the United States.
Group accounting policies are also substantially istent with
accounting principles generaﬂy accepted in the United ngdom,
with the notable exception of the provision for deferred taxation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity wich
generally accepted accounting principlcs requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounis
reported in the Financial Statermié

- Acrual resulrs could diffés ﬁ'om thosc estjmates

: Equilon and Motiva

From January 1, 1998 the western and mtdwestcrn United States
refining and marketing businesses and domestic United States

trading, transportation and lubricants businesses were combined
with similar operations of Texaco Inc. through the formation of

Equilon Enterprises e (“Eqmlon ) The Group has a 56%

interest but does not exercise control and therefore accounts

" for its investment in Equilon on the equity basis. Similarly, from

July 1, 1998 the eastern and Gulf Coast United States refining
and marketing businesses were combined with similar
operations of Texaco Inc. and Saudi Arabian Qil Company,
including theit respective interests in Star Entcrpnsc, through
the formation of Motiva Entcrpnscs LLC (“Motiva™). The
Group has a 35% ifiterest and accounts for its investment in
Motiva on the equity basis. These changcs had a material effect
in 1998 on'the net proceeds and operating profit of Group
companies and on the share of operating profit of associated-
compahies, compared to prewous years.

Changes in accounting policy

With effect from 1998 the Group Financial Statements are
published in dollars instead of sterling. Comparative data
previously reported in sterling have been translated into dollars
using the exchange rate prevailing in the relevant period.

The Group has implemented new United States accounting
standards which require disclosures relating to other
comprehensive income, the aligning of published results with
internal segment reporting, the expensing of start-up costs

“'Thé treatment of Parent Companies’ shares held by Group
companies has been changed with effect from January 1, 1998

- Such shares are no longer included in the Group’s net assets:

Prior years have not been restated, due to the Immaterlallty
of the amounts involved.
Reflecting their non-current nature, deferred charges and

© prepayments due after one year and other non-current assets, o
. ;previously included in accounts rccclvablc, are-fiow prescntcd b
separately as “Other long-term assets’. L

Currency translohon

“translated to dollars at year—cnd rates of cxchange, ‘whilst their

statements of income and cash flows are translated at quartetly




FOFi mpanies”interest in Group net
assets. Upon disinvestment or liquidation:of i non-dollar

Group company, cumulative curre: 1
related to that company are raken to income,

a result

Securities : .. ]
Securities of a trading nature are carried ar fair value with
unrealised holding gains and losses being included in net
income. Securities intended o be held to maturity are carried ar
_cost, unless permanently impaired in which case they are carried
 at fair value; All other securities are classified as available for
: sale'and are carri dinig gai
and losses bein
in Group net-asséts. Upon sale-or
losses are included in net iticome.
Short-term securities with a maturity from ag
three months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash are classified as cash equivalents. Securities
formirig part of a portfolio which is required to be held long-
term are classified under fixed assets — investments,
. Cash esulting from.movements in securities of a trading
nature are reported under cash‘low provided by operati
activities while cash flows resulting from movements i
sccurities are reported under cash ini i

Financial instruments R
The accounting method used for derivative financial
instry s is determined by whether or not'the instrument
ed as 2 hedge of an existing exposure or a firm-#:,
tment and, if so;, by the-accounting method used foe the
item being hedged. Hedges of éxisting exposures are accounired
for in the same way as the'irem being hedged. Forward exchange
contracts and currency swaps used to hedge exchiange rate
exposure are valued at market with resulting gains and losses
taken to income when the gains and losses on the underlying
hedged transactions are recognised. Gains or losses on hedges of
irm commitments are deferred and recognised wheri any gains
or losses edged transactions are recognised. Derivative-
n designated as hedges are
valued at market and gains 4 sses are taken. to income.
The effect of derivative financial instrum
in the Financial Statements as follows:
Statement of Income: premiums or discounts on derivative
truments that are designated as hedges are reflected as
djustments to interest income or expense. Interest differentials
1 tives used to hedge debt or d
¢ interest expense and interest inco:
respectively. Gains or losses on‘foreign currency contraces used
to hedge assets or liabilities are included within currency
exchange gains/losses. Gains or losses on commodity derivative
gontracts, other than those designated as hedges of firm
" ‘commitments, are included within cost of sales.

The dollar equivalents of exchange gains and losses arising as d

- Inventories

- of assets whose use

tying amounts
bt or debt securities

Statement of Assets and Liabilitics: the
of foreign exchange derivatives that hed,
are included within investments — securities; short-term
ecurities, cash and cash equivalents, sh. rm debt or long-
term-debr as applicable. The carrying amounts of other
included within current assets or liabilities.
of Cash Flows: the effect of interest rate
‘Interest payments and the effect of commodity,
derivative contracts ‘are included within cash fow provided by
operating activities, The effect of foreign exchange derivatives
is included within the movement in the item being hedged.

yaps are entered it
generally in order to hedge exposure
arise on purchases and sales of crude o

some Group comp:
rice fluctuations whic

ral.gas and oil

“‘praducts. Contracts designated as hedges ate valued at market

and resulting gains and losses are taken to income when the gains
and losses on the underlying hedged transactions are recognised.
e gdins and losses on contracts that are nor !
s are taken 1 i

Inventories are stated at cost to. oup or net realisable
value, whichever is lower. Such cost is derermined for the most.
part by the firstin first-out method (FIFO); but relatively
important amounts are determined on the basis of the last-in

first-out method (LIFO);'¢

Cost of- pr

Exploration costs : _
Group companies follow the successt rts method of
accounting for oil and gas exploration costs. Exploration icosts
are charged to income when incurred, with the exception that
exploratory drilling costs are initially included in tangible fixed
sets pending determination of commercial reserves; should
efforts be ned unsuccessful, they are then charged’ -
o:income: : e )

Interest capitalisation :

Interest is capitalised, as aniincrease in tangible fixed assets,

on significant capital projects during construction. Interest

is also capitalised, as an increase in investments in associated
omparies, on funds-invested by Group companies which are
mpanies for significant capital pro

Depreciation, depletion and amorfisatic
Tangible fixed assets related to production agtivities are
depreciated on a unit-of-production basis over the proved
developed reserves of the field concerned, except in the case
ful life is shorrer than the lifetime of the fi
-line method is applied. Rights an,
1-'on_the unit-of-production basis o
es of the relevant area, Unproved :
properties are amortised as required by pi lar circumstances.
Other rangible fixed assets arc generally depreciated on a
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stralght—hne basm over their estimated useful lives. Goodwill,
which is included within intangible fixed assets, is amortised
over its estimated useful economic life, wit miim of. .
40 years, :
The carrying amounss of fixed assets are reviewed for
possible impairmient wheéiiever events or changes in
circumstances indicite. For this purpose, assets are grouped
based on separately identifiablé and largely independent cash
flows. Where impairment is indicated, the carrying amounts
of assets are written down to fair value, usually determined
as the amount of estimared discounted future cash flows. Assets
held for sale are written down to the amount of estimared net:

realisable value.

Environmental expenditures

Liabilities for environmental remediation resulting from past
operations or events are recognised in the period in which an
obligation to-a third party arises and thé amount can be
reasonably estimated. Measurement of liabilities is based on
curretit lega.l requirements and existing technology. Rccognmon
of any joint and several liability is based upon Group companies’
best estimate of their final pro-rata share of the liability. Liabilities
are determined independently of expected institince recoveries.
Recoveries are recognised and reported 4§ Separdte events and
broughe irito account when reasonably certain of réalisation.
The carrying amount of liabilities is regularly reviewed and
adjusted for new facts or changes in law or technology.

Decommissioning and restoration costs :
Estimated decommissioning and restoration costs are based ofi -
current requirements;: technology and price levels. In respect of
oil and gas production activities, the estimated cost is provided
over the life of the proved developed reserves on a unit-of-
production basis. For other activities, the estimated cost is
ptovided over the remaining life of a facility on a straight-line
basis orice an obligation crystallises and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Changes in estimates of costs are accrued
on a prospective basis. : :

Deferred taxation R

Deferred taxation is provided. 'ng the comprehensive liability
method of accounting for income takés based on provisions of
enacted laws. Recognition is given to deferred tax assets and -
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events
that have been reccgmsed in the Financial Statements or in the
tax returns. In estimating these tax consequences consideration
is given to expected future events. The measurement of deferred
tax assets is reduced, if necessary, by a valuation allowance
representing the amount of any tax benefits for whlch there
is uncertainty of realisation. :

' Employee retirement plans

Retirement plans to which employees contrlbute and many
non-contributory plans are generally funded by payments to
independent trusts. Where, due:to local conditions, a plan is not
funded, a provision which is not less than the present value of
accumulated pension benéfits, based on present salary levels, is
included in the Financial Statements. Valuations of both funded
and unfunded plans are carried out by independent actuaries.

Pension cost primarily rcprcsents the increase in actuarial

on employee service during the year and the interest on
obligation in respect of employee service in previous years,
net of the expetted return on. pian assets.

Postrefirement benefits ofher than pensuons --

Some Group companies provide certain postretlrcment hcalth
care and life insurance benefits to retirees; the entitlemeént to
which is usually based on the employee remaining-in service

up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service

.. petiod. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over
. the periods employees render service to the Group These

plans are not funded. A provision is included in the Flnanciai
Statetnents which is sufficient to cover the present value of
the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation based oni/ :
current assumptions. Valuations of these obligations are carried- o
out by independent actuaries.

Intra-Group sales

mpamas are based on prices generally

Admiinistrative expenses
Administrative expenses are those which do not rclate dlrcctly

- to the acrivities of a single business segment and include

expenses incurred in the management and co- ordmatlon
of multi-segment enterprises. e

- Research and development

Research and development cxpcnditurc is charged to irncome
as incurred, with the exceptio on buildings and ma}or
items of equipment which hawt tive use,

Reclassifications
Cerrain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform
with cutrent-year presentation.
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Division of Group net income between the Parent
he divisi

STATEMEN

Companies 4" Pore anies’ interest i

f Group net income, in accordance with Note 1, is % million

 as follow 1996
Invested by Parent Companies 74T

1998 § million  Prokits dapitalised by Gro LD con 3:253

" Totof Royal Ditch: — Shellfranspert . . Retained earnings of Group con 55,488

Group nét income 350 it Companies’ shares held R

Distributions from retained earnings 5,362

p companies [

distributions to on differences . (487)
' 5712 3,485 2,227 . Unredlised gain ses} on securit 162
Minimum pension liability adjustments (33)

_ Balance at December 31

{40%] 2,324

[60%) 3A§5

(60%) 3,217

(40%) 2,145

not been made for taxes on possible futare distribution of these

undistributed earnings as these earnings-have been, or will be,
substantially reinvested by the companies concerned. It is not,

$ millica
Royol Dutch . Shell Transpont
less Undistribited n 1,200
Net distributions w s
Parent Companie 2,130

therefore, meaningful to provide for these taxes nor is it

Tax benefil referable to net
distributions accruing to

3,723

hholding

Shell Transport {see Note1 352 = 352
Divisible for 60:40 purposes 6,205 [B0%) 3,733 {40%)] 2 482
"""""" 1,900 {40%) 1,140 {40%) 760 e /fc;“";';
£ fax 7 After lox
S miflion - 16} 461
= Total Puch  ShellTranspont; e 21
Group net income - 8,886 :
less Undistributed net incom 3,850 - .
Met distributions to : :
at Companies 5,036 3,284 1,752 Unrealised gains/[losses) on securifies 215
Reclassifications {22
! Unreclised gains/(losses) on securifies
: : 437 - net of reclassifications 193 {24} 169
Divisible for 60:40 pu 5,473 |60%) 3,284 .

Undistributed net income
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& Associcted compuanies
{a} Income L
Associated companies engage in sirmlar busmcsses to Group
companies and play an important patt in the overall opei tmg
activities of the Group. Consequently, the Group nare of -
operating profits arising from associated companiés is seen is
a contribution to the total Group operating profit and is shown
as sttch in the Statement of Income. The Group share of interest
income, interest expense, currency exchange gainsf/losses and
taxation of associated companies:has been included within
those items in the Statement of Income.

A summarised Statement of Income with respect to the
Group share of net income from associated compamcs, together
with a segment analysis, i§ set out:-belows

$ million

1998 1997 1996
Net proceeds 33,464 23094 22,572 ..
Cost of sales 30,944 19238 18,458
Gross profit 2,520 3,856
Gither operating expenses 3276 1726 2186
Operating profit/{loss] - . (756) 2,130 1,928
Interest and other income . . . 75 4gh 7 57 :
Interest expense . 313 228 225
Currency exchange goms/ {losses) 39 {7 23
tncome before toxation (955} 1,944 1,783
Taxation 489 713 767
Net income {1,444} - 1,231 1,016

Cost of sales in 1998 includes $2,243 million relating to the
impairment of cerrain fixed assets, primarily in the Exploration
and Production segment, mainly resulting fromi the downward
revision in expectation of long-term sustained oil prices.

The related tax effects are not included in taxation. abe
buc are reflected in the results of Group compamcs
such investments. :

Income by segment T million
. TNeRE 1997 - 1996
Exploration and Production {2,054) 480 283
Downstream Gas and Power Gener =289 - 255 263
OQil Products COo . 340 328 300
Chemicals B 1) 162 173
Other I s 7 5/ 6 (3)

(1,444} 1,231 1,016

2114

{b) Investments

e Shares Loans
At January 1 11,969 1,065
New investments .- 87 411
Net asset fransfers to associates
and cther movements 4,556 188 4,744 3,426
Net income (1,444) - (1,444) 1,231
Dividends (1,137) - (1,137} - {1,102}
Currenicy translafion
differences 169 as 207 {1,091}
At December 31 14,984 1,702 16,686 13,034

- It the'Group’s Financial Statenients; assets and lizbilities

transferred to Equilon of approximarely $6.2 billion dnd
$2.3 billion, respectively, were removed from the Statement
ets and Liabilities and the net amount 6f $37¢
cotded as an equity investment in Equlio
§ arid liabilities transferred to Motiva of ap
.2 billion and $0.5 billion, respectively, were r
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and the ner amount of
$1.7 billion was recorded as an equity investiment in Motiva.
A summarised Statement of Assets and Liabilities with
respect to the Group share of investments in associated
companies, is set out below:

Assets/Liabilities
a6
Fixed asiets 23,331 ....17,073
Current assets 7,403 5,468
Total assets 30,734 22,541%
Current liabilifies 8343 5410
5,705 4,097

Longerm liabilities

Neét bssets 16,686 13,034

An analysis by segment is shown in Note 22.

{c) Transactions between Group companies and
associated companies

Transactions between Group and associated companies mainly
comprise salés afid purchases of goodsiand services in the
ordinary course of business and in total amounted to:

$ million

1998 1997 1996

Ch'd'r"gés to associated compdiies 11,620 .:.12,052 . 11,989

: Ch'é'x_fgés from associated companies 4046 - 4,501 3,931

Balances outstanding at December 31 in respect of the above
transactions are shown in Notes 13 and 17.



7 Interest aod other income {b] Taxes payable

$ million $ millign
‘ 1998 1997 1996 1998 1997
Group companies . o Taxes on qctivities of Group companies 1,535 1,963
Interest income : A87 758  Soles taxes, excise duties and
“Other Thcome &7 simikar-levies and sacial law toxes 2,518 0. 2,781
554 o 4,053 4,744
Associated companies 75

cferred taxation comiprises the followmg

Other income of Group companies'in 1998 mcludes net tax CECC':S of tcmporary dlﬂ'erences ; :
unrealised holding gains on trading securities of $1 million e $ million-
$6 million fosses; 1996: $31 million losses). 1998 1997
Tangible and intangible fixed assets ti 10,657 11,886
“Inferest expense Other itams : 2,161 1,801
. Total deferred tax lighilities 12,818 13,687
Tox losses carried forward {3,088) {2,279
Less mreres cup[tuhsed 87 . cRrovisions e
Interest expense of Group companies =+ 20 942 Pensuons and 5"1""‘" obligations {764) {812)
Interest expense of associated companie 13 228 H_,221 {1,130}
: : s )
............... o S 69|

d tax Gisels
ation allowance

9 Toxabion

18,184] (7.257)
(a) Taxation charge for the year

2,521 2,450

& illich Net deferred tax assels {5,663) - (4:80
L 1998 1997 1996 o '
Current tax charge 3,746 6,273 6,050 Net deferred tax |iobiiiiy 7,155 8,880

2422 438771.,002
1424 6,709~ 7,052 The Group has tax losses carried forward amounting to

49 713787  $7,104 million at December 31, 1998 OF thesc, $2,888 million
" can be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining $4,216 mdhon
cxpxres in the f‘ollowmg :

Deferred feix charge/ {credit}

Reconciliations of the expected $ riffian

to the actual tax ch 752
- 1997

Expected fax charge ot statutory rates ¥ 6.922

Adjustments of valuation allowance R b {8 _

Adjustments in respect of prior years {135) |87 {356) .. 2008-2013. 1,664

Other 79 {118} 266

Taxation chcrge ot Group companies 1424 6709 7,052

The taxation charge of Group companies includes not only
'ncomt: taxes of general application bur also income taxes at
tes levied on income from cxploration and production

jous additional i income and other taxes




10 Tangible and intangible fixed assets =

1998

1967
Total Total
Group Group
Cost
At January 1 130,252 2,482 132,734 144,228
Capital expenditure 11,618 1,241 12,859 12274
Sales, retirerments and other
movements® {14,681 461 (14,2205 (13,002} -
Currency translation differences 1,219 7 1,226 110,766}
At December 31 y 128,408 4,191 132,599 132,734
Deprec:ahon
At January 1 66,759 407 67,166 72,905
Depreciation, depletion and
amortisation charge 8,308 1,115 9423 7,375
Sales, retirements and other e
movements® (8,342} 57 > {8,285} {7,440}
Currency translation differences .. 908" - 3 909 . - [5,674)
At December 31 67,631 1,582 . .69,213- 67,166
Net 1998 - &, 63,386
1997 TUBAAD: 65,568

° Includes transfers o associoted companies.

Capital expenditure, tagether with new investments in associated:
companies, and the depreciation, depletion and amortisation
charge are shown in Note 22, classified, consistent with oil and
gas industry practice; according to operating activities: Such a
classification, rather than one according to type of asset, is given
in order to permit a better comparison with other companies
having similar activities.

The net balances at December 31 include:

% millien
] - 1998 1997
Capitalised costs in respect of assets not yet used #+: - - _
in operations -
Unproved properties 2,539 2,186
Proved properties under developiment and other
assets in the course of consiruction 7A73 5,325
10,012 7,511 - ¢

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charges for the year in
the table at the top of the previous column are included within the
following expense headings in the Statement of Income:

§ million

B 1997 1996

_ 7768 5583 6,027
Seﬂmg cmd distribution expenses 1,264 1,366 1,085
Administrative expenses 55 130 75
Exploraion 10 - 14 21
esearch and development 85 96 96
neluded within the Stafement of Income 9,182 7,189 7304
Profit on disposals - 241 186 .~ - 463
9,423 7 767

7375 -

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charges for 1998
include 82,177 million {1997: $37 million; 1996: $184 mlihon)
relating to the impairment of tangible fixed asscts, and $836
million (1997: nil; 1996: nil) relating to the impairment of
intangible fixed asséts. Such charges are recorded within cost
of sales. For 1998 the impairments mainly relate to Chemicals,
resulting from the decision to dispose of 4 significant portion
of the portfolio, to a disposal decision relating to certain
Downstream Gas assets, due to a significant downturti in
b ‘conditions and a strategic review, and to Exploratmn
and Productxon, mainly resulting from the.downward revision
in expectation of long-term sustained oil prices. '
‘The 1998 impairment charges relate to assets held for use
{$827 million) and to assets held for sale ($2,186 million).

Net fixed assets at December 31, 1998 include assets held
for sale totalling $3.8 billion, consisting primarily of assets. -
in the Chemicals, Downstream Gas and Exploration and
Production segments. Operating profits/{losses) included in the
Statement of Income relating to these assets totalled ${410)

million for 1998 (1997: $33 miillion; 1996: $260 million).

11 Other long-term assets

Reflecting their non-current nature, deferred charges and
prepayments due after one year and other non-current assets are
presented separately as “Other long-term assets”. At December 31,
8 these include $3,623 million {1997: $3,760 million) of

sd charges and prepayments, of which $2 729 million

(1997: $2, 442 million} relates to prepaid pension costs.

¢ 1% inventories

$ million

1998 1997

Inventories of oil, chemicaliandcgel 5,111 6,592
Inventories of materidls - - 865 @17
" 5976 7.509

Of the total mveriténes, $908 million at December 31, 1998
(1997: $1,367 mlihon) wholly in North Amerxca are valued by

mventor ies

Ut ‘Pevember 31, 1998 (1997 excess of FIFQ eost over the
carrying amount of such LIFQ inventories.was $628 million).




15 Debt
{a) Shorkterin debt

$ miflion

1998

1997

Amounis owed by Gisaciated companies i .

Debentures and. other ioans 5,406
Chher receivables s and athisr credit.institutions
Amounts due from Shell. Transport in bt due within one ) ' 2,329
respect of UK advance corporation tax ' ' 7,733
Deferred charges and prepayments igations 43
o Shortterm debt.. - 7.778
. 7 fess long-term debt due within one year 1,405
or doubtful items deducted from accounts Shortterm debt excluding longterm
7 $198 million at December 31; 1998.. debt due within one year 6,373 3,158
ly to short-term debt excluding
thin one year: a _
{a) Investments — securities - - . $ million
Investments — securities mainly comprises a portfolio of equity S 1998 1997
and debr securiries required to be held long-term by the Group ~ Maximum amount cutstanding at the end of any quarier 8,654 4,514
il e companies as security for their insurance activities. - L ‘
Fhese securities are classified as available for sale, Of these, Average amouiit eutstanding 6,322 3,970
" $640 million at D ber 31, 1998 (1997: $636 million) .
are debr securitic aturities of the greater partof whi © Amounts due to bariks and other credit instititions 2144 2,448
exceed five years ' . - :
. "Unused tines term credit 6,694 6,577
{b) Short-term securities {including those classified as cash o i T
equivulems) . A'pﬁroxirn_qre average interest rute-on_:__
The total carrying amount of short-term securities, including average. amount cutstanding ' 7% 7%
those classified as cash equivalents, is $391 million it December amount outstanding at December 31 6% 8%

8-(1997; $1,461 million). Of these, $154 million are of |
g nature (1997: $533 million). The remainder are debt
securities {1997 included $440 million of debr securities) whi
are classified ailable forsale. . S
Short-term securities ar December 31, 1998 include -
$156 million (1997: $949 million) which are listed on

recognised stock exchanges,




{b) Long-term debt

14 Commitments

$milion (0} Leasing arrangements
1998 1997 The future minimum lease payments under operating leases
Debentures and cther foans 1499 1,324  and capiral leases, and the present value of n
Amaunts due to banks and other credit institutions 4,219 4,219 lease payments at December 31, 1998 Ll
B 5718 5,543 : " § million
Capitalised lease‘abligations 314 269 Wi Gt
Long-term debt 6,032 5812 ... ... Jeases | leases
add longterm debt due within one year 14051437 1999 1,644 63
Llongterm debt including longterm debt 2000 1,255 - 5]
due within one year 7,437 7,449 2001 : o 1,024 80
5002 T —— 737 41
Pledges of assets have been given, 2003 626 48
loans, to the extent of $1,649 m 2004 and ofter 2,123 156
{1997: $1,575 million}. Total minimum payments o 7 AD9: 441
Unused lines of long-term eredit amounted to $715 mxlhon _ less executory costs and interest S 84
at December 31, 1998 (1997: $693 million). ot value of net minimum
The remainder of this note relates to long-term debt J 'e"se poyments 337

including the short ter part but excluding capitalised lcase
obligations. B
Long-termn debt denominated in US dollars amounted to “.
$5,855 million at Décember 31, 1998 (1997: $5,480 million).
The approximate weighted average interest rate in 1998 was

6% for US dollar debt and 7% for total debt.
- The aggregate maturities of long-term debts are:

[3 million
1999 1,362
2000 404
2001 1,007
2002 1,099
2003 096
50042008 T 1675
2009-2018 L
2019 and after . . 307

.- In general, the above future minimum operating lease payments
- are calculated on a time basis. The figures represent minimum

commirments existing at December 31, 1998 and are not a
forecast of futute total rental expense.

Toral rental expense for.all operating leases was as follows:

.. % million
1998 1997 1996
Minimum renfals .. - 1,615 1,628 1,884
Confingentretals 167 174 177
Sub-lease rentals (204) {233) (238}
: 1,578 1:56%9 1,823
{b} Long-term purchase obligations
< Gtoup companies have unconditional long—term purchase e
" obligations associated with financing arrangemenes. -
The aggregate amount of payments required under such -
obligations at Decenber 31;:1998 is as follows:
% million
1999 193
2000 161
2001 146
3Ggg 122
200 105
2004 and aher 266
Lo 9?3

" The agreements under which these uncondirional purchase- "~ -

obligations arise relate mainly to the purchasc of utilities and
of chemicals feedstock, and t6 ransportatlon of crude oil
and narural gas by pipeline.. -7

Payments under these agrccmcnts, which include additional
sums depending upo : sctual quantities of supplies, amounted
to $190 mllhon in 1998 (1997: $149 million).




$ miltion

$ miillicn

1997,
8,051
1,184

" Movements M
orising from
cusrency Staten
translation  Cosh Flows . . movements

Mdior

1,215

Movements .

derived from

Statement of

noncash - Assets and

Liabilities

Pensions and similar obligati 186
Other payables - 3,134 8:;’.5} 2,182)
Accruals and ‘deferred income 4,888 3) . 3'6 52
875 53y
SE ER— 158?’
. 18: long-term liabilities ~ Other !
Thesé-amounts are miainly in respecr of environmental ghort—term debs (1,235)  13,215)
incy liabilities, deposits and deferred credits. o??;:ﬁ;:: nf‘zir;bt o1 2t ) 232
26:million ecember 31, 1998 7 A
i : ccounts payable :
 not fall due until more and accrued liabilifies 232 (488 120 867
ive balance sheet dates. payable . 336 691
L m-debt B {220)
19 Statement of Cash Flows : todl taxation
This statement reflects the cash flows arising from the activities and other provisions 31 1,451 °
rcompanies as measured in their own currencies, Ofther (647} {1,573
to dollars at quarterly average rates of exchange. Adjustment for Parent Companies’
shares held by Group. companies
and other comprehensive income,
xcluding currency transiation
' onsale (156} 210 490

exchange (except for those arising on cash and cash equivaleiits)
and non-cash investing and financing activities. These currency
translation differences and non-cash investing and finaricing

- activities must therefore be added to the cash flow movements
at average rates in order to arrive at the movements derived
from atement of Assets-and Liabilities, '

and to the acquisition of Group compani

20 Employee emaluments ond numbers
{a) Emoluments -

The main non-cash movements relate to the contribution
of assets and liabilities to newly-formed associated companies

1997

Products and Chemicals

emuneration 5,515 5,556.
Social law taxes . 511 D24
Pensions and similar obliggtions T
{Note 21} 82 205

‘ 6,108 6,285

{b) Average numbers .

. — . housands
22221996
T

m Gas and Power Generation .. Y 1 -

Qil Products 58 61 58
Chemicdls 20 21 23
Other 7 5 5
-[02 i -I 04

998 above, th “charges

o provisions for redundancy

segments; related expenditure during the year was not significant.
These restructuring charges relate to over 4,700 employees.
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21 Employee retirement plans and other postrefirement benefits
Retirement plans are provided for permanent employees of all major Group companies. The nature of such plans varies according
to the legal and fiscal requirements and economic conditions of the country in which the employecs are engaged. Generally, the
plans provide defined benefits based on employees” years of service and average final remuneration.

Some Group companies have established unfunded definied benefit plans to provide certain postretirement health care and lifc
insurance benefits to their retirees, the entitlement to Which'is usually based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement
‘age and the completion of a minimum service period.

Plan assets principally comprise marketable secuirities and property holdings.

$ million
Pensicn benafits Other benefits
1998 1997 1998 1997
USA Other Total UsA Other Total
Change in benefit obligation s
Obligations for benefits bcsed e
date at January 1 . 31,179 29,913 %01 295 1,196 814 387 1,201
Increase in present value of the obligation for banefits
based on employee service during tie year 808 .. 683 19 10 29 20 12 32
Interest on the obhguhon for benefits in. respect of . R T
employee service in previous years e 1,938 1,899 57. .18 75 59 20 79
Benefit payments made (1,563) (1,477} 44 - (26) (72) {42} {30) {72}
Currency translation effects/othsr 1,903 w19 97 78 50 [94) {44}
Obligations for benefits based ot employée servica to T o
date at December 31° T 34,265 31,179 - 212 394 1,306 Q01 295 1,196
Change in plan assets
Plan assets held in trost at foir. vcnlue af fanuary 1 38,363 34,184
Actual return on plan assets ’ 4913 6,198
Employer contributions 214 1,422
Plan porticigonts’ contribations 26 30
Benefit payments mode {1,563} .. {1,477)
Currency translation effects/other components 1,046 (1,994}
Plon assets held in krust ot fair value ot December 31° 42999 38,343

Plan assets in ex:ess of /{less than) the present value
of obligations for benefits at December 31 8734 7,184  (912) {394 - {1,306)  (901) {295 {1,196)
Unrecagnised net [gains)/losses remaining from the ToerELa

adoption of current methed of determining pstision eosts .- ... ... ... {259 {330) T e
Unrecognised net {gains) /losses since.adoption {7854) (5,311} {86} 58 (28 199} (20} (119
Unrecognised prior service cost/{credif) S 496 250 (13} 2 {n {8y . .3 nz
Net amount recognised S nz 793 (1,011} (334) (1,345} {1,015 {312} [1,327)
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Assefs cmcl

Liabilifies consist of:

Prepoid benefit costs 2,729 2,442 _ .. -
Accrued benefit liabilifies _ (1,671 (1,685 it @334) (1,345 (1018312 (1327

59 36
A7 793 (1,013)  [334) (1,345) . (,015] @I (1,3%27)

= For employee retirement plans with benefit cbligation in excess of 3 ctive amounts of December 31, 1998 were benefit obligations: of $2,776 miflion {19977 $2,403 million)
-did plan assets of $1,813 million [1997 $1,45%.million}, The obhgahon Fo ¢ pénsiéi benefits ot December 31, 1998 in respect of unfunded plans. wias $725 million {1997: $630 million).

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Net amount recognised




21 Employee refirement plans and cﬁaer pos?mhremenl’ benafits conti ued
- Benefit costs for theyear comprise: © " oy

$ million
Pension benefits Ohher bensfits
1998 1997 1996 1998 ]
USA Othar Total
808 663 614 e 10 29
1ntere R 1,938 1,899 1,961 ‘57 18 75
Expected return L
on plan assets 95 (2578} (2,910} e
Net total of other™ e
components ' & {88] - [54) . [31} - (27)
Cost of dafined IR T o
benefit plans 45 o9 11 45 32
Payments. fo defined o
co__n_trlbuhon plans 123 118 113
168 19 124 45 32

they are -dctermmcd in the

: pro;ectcd rates of remuneration growth
local conditions

d expected rates of retiirn on plan assets vary fo
caghtcd averages applicable for the principal plan:

Pension benefits Other benefits

Discount rate

Projected rate of remuneration growih

Expected rate of return on plan assets

Health care cost trend e

¢ in year, affer reporting year

Ultimate health care cost frend rejte

5:.0% 1.3%

mate health care cost frend rate is applicable

2002 2002 2002

“Fheeffeceof
would be zo
postretirement b

t obllgatmn b

ercentage point increasel(decrease) in the annual rate of increase in the assumed health care cost trend rates
/(decrease) annual postretirement bene

-approximartely $239

ost by approximately $22. million/($19 million) and the accumulated
nf($218 millio
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22 Information by geographical ares and i&y indusiry segroent
{al Geographical area

$ million
weR.. i 1997 1996
Net Fixed Net fiked Net Fixed
proceeds ossets proceeds assets proceeds assets
Europe 44,374 - 29487 . 58989 28,176 60,488 28,554
Other Eastern Hemisphere - 17,785 22,255 1 24047 20,483 23,499 - - 22,962
USA and Canade : 20,050 25,304 33,233 26,728 33,550 10 25,245
Other Western Hemisphere - 1,483 - 5712 11,886 5,720 10,776, 4,242
Total Group 93,692 82,758 128,155 81,107 128,313 81,003
{b} Industry segment
1998 R L $ million
Total  Exploration and Production Downsirédm Gas ond - Qil Products. . - Chemicals  Corporate
T Power Genertion o, and Othier
Group Group
excluding excludifig excluding
Shelt Cif and Shell Oil ond - Shekt Oif and  Shell Oil and  Shell Ol cmd Shell Oil and
S Sheli Canada Shell Canada Sh Conade Shell Conoda Shell Candda Shell Canada  Total Group  Total Graup
Sales L
third parties 93,692 5,458 2.661 1,035 6,760 58,233 6,505 12,272 767
imer-segment 5,563 1,837 79 113 1,297 579 849 -
Net proceeds 11,021 . 4,498 1115 4,873 59,530 7,084 13,121 767
Cperating profit/ floss} -
Group compaties 3,860 2,995 - 588 119 (807)
Group share of associated companies {756) 331 {2,171 454 24
3,104 3,326 (1,583 573 {783}
Interest and other income 529 66 38 104 4
interest expense’ - 1,333 M 145 I 157
Currency exchange gains/(losses) 5 5 (17) {4 -
Taxation -~ 1,913 2300 {565 160 {238}
Income applicable to minority interests 142 - 15 76 42 1
Net income Cl 9T o (1,218) 350 1699)
Total assets at December 31 25,236 12,383 4,101 4,395 33,522 8,115 17,082 5,234
Investments in associated companies o o S
at December 31 16,686 1,938 2,053 1,890 390 2,009 5217 2,995 194
Copital ex nditure and new investments in _ . S
_assaciated companies 2,002 245 1,880 2,737 151 2,002 314
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charge , o o
Impairment 3,013 475 272 - 755 196 - 1,315 -
Other 6410 2,074 52 122 1,851 168 920 114

10090, .
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22 Information by geographical are
{b) Indysiry segment continved

1997

$ million

Exploration and Production ~ Downstream Oil Producis
‘ " Gas and Power

Ge

nerction :
: Grouprexcludmg Group excluding™ .
Shell Oikiand: " Shell Oil and’ Shell Oil and” -+ SheHl Oii and
Shell Canada: ' Shell Canada - Shell Canada *  Shell Canada - Tetal Group

third parties 128,155 4,187 913 77706 23695 14,255
intersegment 2857 2117 1,894 925
Net proceeds 79823 25589 15,180

Operating profit/{loss)

Group companies 2,158

Group share of associated companies 380

: .. 2,538

ind other.income 101
. 52 a3
- y-exe (264) (13
Taxation 618 227
ncome applica {131) A5
Net income 503

Total assets ot December 31 11,648

Investments in associated companies

at December 31 2,367 242

.'Cﬁpiiul expe ndil'ure and new investments i
ossociulecr;mpanies :

14,000 3,679 2,450 1,014 3,373 711 . 2,493 280

Depreciation, deplsiion and g
Impairment .
Other




| Dustch/Shell Group of Companies &1

{b} Indusiry segment continued

1996 e i % million
' Total Exploration and Production ~ Downstream Ol Chemicals - - Corporate
Groyp T Gas and Power and Other
Generation T
Group excluding Group excluding Group excluding

. - Shell Ol and  Shelt Oil and  Shell Ol and . Shell Oil and  Shell Oil and
" 5hall Céngdo. . Shell Conoda  Shell Canada - Shell Canoda - Shell Conada * - Totol Group  Total Group

Sales S e B

""""" fhird parties 128,313 6,833 4,152 - 861 77,332 24316 14,006 813
inter-segment L - 92418 3,553 316 1,855 1,721 749 . =

Net proceeds S ek 16,251 7,705 1,177 79,187 26,037 14,755, 813

Operating profit/floss]

72,179 107 7,687 637+

Group componies ... [ 7 15,201
Group share of associaled companies 1,928 w64 386 428 48
' 17,129 ,243 493 3,310 695

Interest and other income 928 40 60 132 23
Interest expense - 1,043 13 148 373 123 B
Currency exchange gains/(losses] {42} 7 5 (5) 20 () 9 {77]
Taxation 7819 5252 731 89 890 206 444 127
income applicable to minority interests 267 46 21 {33} - 80 12 98 {7}
Net income 8,886 3,538 1,333 264 2,139 376 897 339
Total assets at December 31 124,140 22,791 15,529 . 3,662 38,238 11,588 18,708 13,624

Investments in associated companies

at December 31 o 8,844 1,028 1,427 2,549 230 2,326 262
Capital nditure and new investmentsin . S .
associated companies . - 11,793 2,856 2,214 424 3,713 851 1,450 285
Depreciation, depletion and amertisation charge : AR
tmpairment 184 - - ~ 122 ¢ 25 11
Cther 7,583 2,436 1,607 102 - 1,852 497 Q55 134




2304 and gas ex 1996

$ millicn

{a} Copitalised
The aggregate am f tangible and intangible fixed assets

- Total

Cither

of Group compani iting to oil and gas exploration and ., Yo "
production activities and the ¥ cquisition o properfies

» » . O )
depreciation, depletion and am Proved

BT 403

shown in the table below: Unproved

2 195

31 1,485
113,602

$ million. S
Toos | :Development
Cost The Group share of associated compani
o3 (1997:-$364 mitlion: |996: $406 million}.
P operties 58457 55824 64,404 ‘ :
ad properties _ 2,864 2,561 2,300 q) Eamings
vipment and fécilities 1,654 . 1,723 ... 2118
- o 60,108 68,822

62,975
Depreciation L
Proved properties
Unproved properties
Support equipment and facilities

- financin

" costy in 437 million in 1998

Earnings of Group companies from explotation and production
activities are given in the table below. These exclude certain

' related tax effects. In addition; certain . -
s'of traded prod net

tred into sales:

 Net capitalised costs 26,728 30,499

“Fastern Hemisphere  Western Hemisphere

28,473 USA and
The Group share of associated companies’ net capitalised costs was $4,644 million ot Europe Other - Canade Other

-+~ Dlecember 31, 1998 (1997: $6.188 million; 1996: $2,614 million]. o Sales '

o RS thirdporfies. 4,271 1258 1,528 132 7189
{b) Costs incurred _ - intra-group 1,873 3,602 1,838 86 7,399
Costs incurred by Grou npanies during the year in oil and. ' 6,144 3,366 218 14,588
gas property acquisition, explorationand development activities, 900 5 -

whether capitalised or charged to income currently; are shown mexpense .

399

in the table below: Development cosrs exclude costs of acquiting Déprecuchqn, depletion

1336 . 715

support equipment and facilities, but include depreciation and amortisation 1,164
thereon. Other income/{costs) (a53) 209 - (677)
Earnings before taxation 2392 1,713, 226
Ty $ million " Taxation 1,096 1,149 {663}

Edﬂarﬁhgmi_sph_em 564 889 .

Earnings from operations .~ 1,296

Europe

Acquisition of properties :
Proved 1

3 $ million
Eastern Hemisphere  Western Hemisphere Tolal
USA and
Europe Other - Canada Other
361 73 . 8,889
i 6,610 11,722
Europe Cther  Canada 7971 20,611
i Production cosis® 2,437 5302
322 29 263 616 Exploration expense 388 1,154
92 216 ~ 313 Depreciation, depletion
475+ 678 and amartisation 878 73 3,543
918 1,440 (122) {523) 46 - (914}
1,601 98 9698
654 81 5421
Q47 17 4,277
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1996 $ million The following table shows, in respect of these plans, the
~Eastom Hemisphers  Western Hemisphere  Toral - itions exercised and options granted during the year, and
o USA and the number of shares inder option at Decembér 31,1998,
‘Europe Other Caonada Other :

Sales Uadere
third parties 5279 1,413 2,504 138 9,334 » Exercised Granted opfion
intra-group 2,344 7,025 3,135 320 12,824 - Royal Dutch ordinary shares 536,920 2.401.430 7,078,450

Net proceeds 7,623 8,438 5,639 458 22,158 _

Production costs* 1,827 27111371 110 6019  &hell Transport Ordinary shares 2,082,378 12,713,384 40,741,224

Exploration expense 377 352 . 367 21 1,117

Depreciation, déplefion : .t Shiell Canada common shares 51,700 - 698:800 1,614,569

ond omaortisation 1,223 1,197 1,384 144 3,948 Ty

Other income/{costs) (89} (19]  1627) 10 (725} o

Eur"if'gs before h’_"“ﬁ"" 4,107 4,159 1890 193 19,349 15 connection with other incentive compensation plans linked -

T°"°f'°“ , 1,958 2,855 630 113 _5'556 to the appreciation in value of Royal Dutch ordinary shates,

Earnings from operations 2,149 ... 1,304 1,260 80,4793  Shell Oil Company has entered into certain equity swaps which

* Includes certain royaliies poid in cash dmauti
(1997: $1,246 million; 1996: $1,353 million),

The Broup share of associated comipantes” edrnings ws ${2,049) million in 1998

(1997 $503 million; 1996: $290 million) after deduicting taxoficn of $208 mitfion in 1998
{1997 $383 million; 1996: $497 illign]. These exclude certain financing costs and refated
tax effacts. i

Irs the USA comparative data from 1998, 1997 and 1996

have been affected by the new alliances Altura and Aera, which
began operations in March and June 1997 respectively and are
accounted for as associated companies. o

24 Stock optioris tind Parent Companiss’ shares held

by Group companies

Certain Group companies have outstanding stock options
granted to executives and other key employees of those and
other Group companies. The options are granted, according
to the particular option plan, for periods of not more than five
o ten years at prices nor less than the market value at the date
of granting the option:

The Senior Executive Stock Option Scheme has been'in S

operation for over 30 years providing stack.options.to the most
senior exeéittives of the Group from time to time. Beginning

in 1995, options were grantéd:to ddaiger group of over 900
managers. This enlargemeént o therwise unchanged scheme
was part of & move to perform elated pay for the wider
fharidgertent cadre of the Group which, by alighing

remuneration with shareholder interest, is intended to support

the drive for improved business performance.

- Shell Transport Ordinary shares 5,555,202 '_5;_534,8'86 31,062,769

are designied to hedge a portion of these plans’ obligations.
Equity swaps relating to the equivalent of 6 million Royal Durch

ry shares are ourstanidirig at December 31; 1998 with a

ctfnotional amount of $287 million and an cst‘i'tﬁgted fair

“value of $(46) million. .

The Shell Petroleum Company Limited, Shell Petroleum
N.V. and Montell UK. Limited each operate a savings-related
stock option scheme, under which options are granted over
shares of Shiell Transport at prices not less than the market
value on a date not more than 30 days before the date of the
grant of option and are normally exercisable after completion
of a three-year or five-year contractual savings period.

The following table shiows; iti tespect of these plans, the

options exescised and oprions granted during the year, and
the number of shares under option at December 31, 1998.

Under
option

Exercised Granted

Parent Companies’ shares held by Group companies at
B ér 31, 1998 in connection with stock option plans
were s follows: G

Royal Dutch ordinary shares ) 6,938,206

Shell Transport Ordinary shares 70,144,279

The net cost of theSc shares at December 31, 1998 is
$700 million. Prior to 1998 such shares were reported
as short-term securities, ; e

In addition, 33,600 shares-of Royal Dutch were hcl.c.'l

by Group companies.
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25 Contingencies and lifigaion ST

‘Two production joint ventures, in which the Group has an: -

interest and which are b e Netherlands and 1ii.Ge;

respectively, have co-operated to extract gas on an equal |

from a common border area. In thé pracess of the final

redetermination of gas reserves in the common argi it emerged

that the German joint venture has in good faith received

considerable quantities of gas in excess of its entidement.

€ two joint ventures reached an agreement on the

an of the excess, and this was subsequently approved

ve:governments. Due o' differences of opinion

between the parties involved relaring to compensation in respect

. of the over-delivery,: ation proceedings were commenced

" ‘and are on-going i ich under the rules of the International

Chamber of Coninterce wi ect to that issue. %

there are other substantive issu ich remain outstandin
in particular, the recovery of royalties paid in respect of the
over-delivery and governmental levies. on any compensation.
Since the ultimate Group interest in the ventures and the
tax regimes applicable to them are differcnt, ‘this:over-delivery
could lead to a net cost to the Group. In 1996 an interim award
was made by the arbitrators. During the year there were no
de ents which resulted in any changes to the provisions

‘be established with reasoriable certainty.
_ paniesiare subject to a number of other loss
contingen rising out of litigarion and claims broug :
governmental and. e parties, including product liability
claims against Shell. Oilinvolving the failure of plumbing
systems constructed with polybutylene plastic pi

Certain other contingent liabilities of Group companies, - -

arising mainly from guarantees for customs duties and third-
party indebtedness, amounted to $1,911 million at December
199871997; $1,539 million). ‘
he judgement of the Directors of the Gréup Holding
‘ riies no losses, in excess of provisions made, which are
--material in relation Group financial position are likely
to arise in respect.of the foregoing matters, although their
occurrenice may have a signi éffect on periodic resilts:
The operations and earnings of Group companies continue,
from time to time, to be affected to varying d: by political,
legislative, fiscal and regulatory developments; including those
relating to environmental protection, in the countries in which
they operate, The industries in which Group companies are
engagediare also subject to physical risks of various types.
: and frequency of these developments and events,
. no f which are covered by insurance, as well as their effect
-~ on future operatis d earnings, are unpredictable,

0

| limired to the

‘made in respect of this matter. However, at this time, the

20-F of Royal Dutch and Shell Transport. See inside back cover

26 Financial instruments
Group companies, in the normal course of business; us¢ various
types of financial instruments which expose the Group to market
£r islc. ude those recognised i :
f Assets and alance sheet”)
financiakinstru . To the extent that finan
arc used to manage exposures, estimar r values of these
instruments will offset, and be recognised concurrently with,
gains and losses associated with the underlying transactions.
Group companies have procedures and policies in place
to limit the amounr of credit exposure o any counterparry .
or market. These procedures and the broad geographical spread
of Group companies’ activities limit t up's exposure to
concentrations of credit or market ris
In the event of a counterparty defail

to Group companies the resulting losses,

on payments due .
‘any, would be
lues of the instruments on. which the

the financial

In June 1998 the Financial Acce
issued Statement of Financial Accounti
“Accounting for Derivative Instrumen 3
Activities”, This standard, which will be effective for the Group
from 2000, requires thar all derivative instruments be recorded
in the Statement of Assets'and Liabilities at thejr fair value.
The Group has not yet completed its evaluation of the impact
cadoption of this standard.
itional dara relared tc
y the United States Se
11, are'given in the199

a! Report on Form

for details of where to obrain a copy.

{a) On-balance sheet financial instruments -
Financial instruments in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities
include fixed assers; investments — securities, trade receivables,

..shortsterm securities, cash and cash equivalents, short-term and

long ot: The estimated fair values of these instruments
' their carrying am

mainder of this |

to derivative instru




oyal Dutch/! Shell Group

{b) Interest rate risk
Some Group companies, primarily those with specialist treasury
operations, use derivatives; such as.interest rate swaps/forward
rate agreements and interest rate caps; to manage their exposure
to movements in interest-rates and thus to help achieve target
levels of interest income or.expense. The financing of most
Group Operating Companics is. structured on z floating-rate .
basis and, except in special cases, further interest rate risk
management is discouraged. The effect of these derivatives is
reflected, as appropriaté; in interest expense or interest income
The total contract/notional amounts and éstirmated fair.
values of Group companies’ interest rate swaps/forwird rate
agreements and interest rate caps at December 31 are given in

the table below:

{d) Commodities

Sceime Group companies operate as traders in crudébil; natural
gas and oil products These comipanies use commodity $waps
and options in the management of their price and timing risks.
In addition, some other Group companies use commodity swaps

. and options o hcdgc the price and timing risks on undcriymg
" bugsiness transactions, The effects of trangacticiis -

‘these instruments are reflected in sales'and purchase costs.
‘The total contract/ nctmnal amounts and estirtiated fair
values of Group companies’ commodity swaps/options at

:December 31 are given in the table below

- 1998

Contactf -2 00 -
Estimated

$ million " Rotidnal - Esfimated  riofionl
2 amount  fair valve  amount.._foir volue
— 19908 . 1997 Trading purposes
LNtrad ontrac
nofional Estimated  notionol  Estimated Assets 458 67 610 58
amount  fair value  amount  fair volue lichilities 957 {79 626 {77)
Interest rate swaps/forward rate Neot for trading purposes 671 {25) 25 i
agreements and inferes! rate caps &,736 {5 6,261 3

The amourit of hedging gains or losses on these instruments
which had been deferréd at December 31, 1998 and at
Deceritber 31, 1997 in respect of firm commitments was
hot sigrificant.

{¢) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange derivatives mcludmg forward exchange
contracts and currency swaj are-used by some
Group companies. Group companies do not trade in these
derivatives, but rather use forwird eschange contracts to
maintain an approptiaté currency balance for investments of
a trading nature. Group companies also use these instruments
to hedge future transactions and cash flows.

The total contract/notional amounts and estimated fair
values of Group cotnpanies’ forward exchange contracts and
currency swapsfoptions at December 31 are given in the
table below:

$ million
. 4.« AU & <4

Contract/ Contract/
notional Esfimated  nofional  Estimated
. . amoynt  fair volue amount  fair vakie
Forward exchonge contracts 4,543 28 4,470 {53}
Currency swaps/options 625 ]0__ 746 78

The amount of hedging gains or lgss
which had been deferred at Dk

sér 31, 1998 and at

December 31, 1997 in rcspect of ﬁrm commitments was
not significant. :

The average fair values of commodity swaps/options used for
trading purposes during 1998 were: assets of $80 million (1997:
$31 million) and liabilities of $65 million (1997: $36 million}).
Trading gains of $25 million arising on cornmodity swaps/options
were included in 1998 income (1997 gains of $40 million).

Group coniipanies also enter into forward sales and purchase
contracts for commodities which may be settled by thie physical
delivery or receipt of the commodity. These contracts are not
included in the above amounts.




Reserves ..
Net quantities of proved oil and gas
estimated quantities of oil and gas
future years from known reservoi i :
which can be expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing
exclude volumes attributable to oil and gas discoveries which are not at pre ug
when technical, fiscal and other conditions allow th shown net
quantities of crude oil or natural gas thar are expected to be taken by others as royalties in kind bur do not exclide certain
quantities related to royaltics expected 1o be paid in cash or those related to fixed margin contracts, Proved reserves include certain.. .
quantities of crude oil or natural gas which will be produced under arrangements which involve Group companies in upstream risks *
and rewards but do not transfer title ofthe product to those companies. '
reserves cannot be measured exactly since estimation of reserves involves subjective judgement and arbitrary determinations.
s have been refined during 1998. Estimates remain subject to revision, ‘ -

Crude ail and natural gas
Group companies’ estj
proved reserves of as:

and natural gas liquids at the end of the year, theit s

comparies at the end of ear, and the changes in such reserves during the year are

Praved developed and undeveloped reserv

Enstern Western Eastern Eastern
Hemisphere Hemisphere Total Hemisphere 4 Hemisphere mis
USA and USA’and . USA and
Eurapa ~  Other. ‘Canada  Other Europé'i ' Other Canada "~ Other Other ~Conada

1423 5156 1416 359 8354 1,436 4887 2,349

268 884 3 (111} 1,077 . 100568 3 1] 682 207 . 353

8 884 36 {111} 1077 . 100 568 3 11 48 807
12 22 - - 30 26 1 = 57 - 64 148
discovaries 40 2 158 - 59 50 397
Purchases of e
minerals in ploce 1 @ 39 S Z 4

Sales of minerals L

in place {1} {40) (32) - -i46)---{119) -
Transfers to assééiated :

companies in the USA
- Production '
At Dece|

- 07 o e

(215} (374) (141 (23} (753] (201} {384] (157) (29 {771) [204) {396} (%3 (17} (810
1515 5782 1,203 189 8,779 1,423 5156 1416 359 8354 1,436 4,887 2.349 377 0049

d companies

At January:]

Revisions and -
reclassifications
Improved recovery
Extensions and
discoveries
Purchases of

- minerals in place

ransfers from Group

- 27 =27 - L 942 - o4y -

B2) @74 - fioe) - 33) & - el o@Es oL
426 . 824 - 1,252 . . 2 394 93] - 1,327 2 384 - -~ - 386
10,031

yes ofGroup compagnies - -:-

Minorily interests’ share of proved ress :
vkt Y

At December 31 - 782




;'Royal Dotch/Shell Group of Companie:

Proved developed reserves millian barrels
1998 1997 1996
Eastern Western Eastern Western Eastern Weslern
.- Hemisphere Hemisphere Totul Hemisphere Hemisphere Total Hemisphere Hemisphere Total
USA and o USA and USA and
Evrope Other  Canada Other Europe Other * Canada Ciher Europe Other  Canada Other
Group companies L
At fonuary |- 794 1,99 704 151 3,640 740 - 1,899 1,505 140 4,284 1,520 83 4384
At December 31 9632314 695 . 78 4050 794 1991 704 151 1,505 140 4,284
Group share of associated companies Co
At January 1 ) 1 172 _ 881 118 - - 182 2 185
At December 31 1 178 ... . 852 1 172 688 B BT } 182
Motural gas

Group companies esumated net

d reserves of natural gas at the end of the year, their share of the net proved reserves

of associated companies at the end of the year, and the changes in such reserves during the year are set out bclow
These quantities have not been adjusted to standard heat content. -

théuscind million standord cokicteet: 4w

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves

1998 N L 19946
Eastern Western Eastern Westérn Eastern Wosterrt
. Hemisphere Hemishere  Total  Hemisphere = . | Hemisphere  Total "~ - | Hemisphers = Hemisphere  Total
USA and USA and _ LSA and
~ Europe Other  Canada Cther Euwrope  Other Canodo Othier Europe Other _Cg_r_j_::_x_q_c_x___________g_ﬁ]g( _________

Group companies S
At January 1 24,848 17,136 7,614 . 167 49,765 25130 14,830 7,341 = 176 47,477 24,905 9,985 .7,795 188 42,873
Revisions and ' C
reclassifications 1075 3760  {3) . 25 4857 357 1436 216 13 2,022 667 4,405 (21] 9 5060
Improved recovery ] 1. .. .+ P F 48 361 - - 409 - 941 65 <947
Extensions and o
discoveries 185 . . 107 454 - 746 536 900 1,228 - 2,664 876 34 753 ~ 1,663
Purchases of
minerals in ploce o= 217 1954 77 +93... 347 - ... A67 8 P 144 - 153
Sales of minerals _ RS Loy
in place Moj. {153 (83 - (348 - {1 (127) - (28 @) (1) @ds% - (463
Transfers to associated
companies in the USA . - - {139 =0 139 == 1582 - 1582) - = - - <
Production TH,256] {449) (787 (19} (2,511) (1,250] [483] {809) (22} [2,564) {1,323] |535] (877) (2] (2,756}
At December 31 24,848 22,139 . 6,956 390 54,333 24,848 17,136 7,614 167 49,765 25,130 14,830 7,341 176 A7 477
Group share of associated companies
At January 1 345793 5% - 6366 34 5514 - - 5,550 34 4,700 - - 4,734
Revisions and i .
reclassifications C3 0 |48 {150} - (195 3 63 40 - 106 3. 449 - - 452
Improved recovery - - - - - - 228 1 - 229 = 594 - - 594
Extensions and ’
discoveries 12 86 - - 98 2 214 - 1 - 217 2 - - - 2
Purchases of "
minerals in place - - 8 - 8 - - - - = - - - =~ -
Sales of minerals
i place RS-SRS, W -« N
Transters from Group N
companies in the USA - - 139 T T 333 -...533 T T - - -
Production 5 2B Uy TREETTRS)LTRes TR peny - ~ 232
At December 31 44 5,605 480 .34 5793 539 . % 6,366 3455146 - - 5,550
Total 60,462 56,131 53,027
Minority interests’ share of proved ; % of Group companies
At December 21 409 - 923 - T 669 - 730 - 181 A&0 - 641




Proved davelohéa reserves

Eastern Western Eastern Western
Hemisphere Hemisphery Total Haimisphera Hemisphera
o USA and " USA and .

Europe - .Other - Canado Other Europe Other * Canada’ . Other

3,727 4783 173 20,552 11,024 4367
3,712 - 4,680 167 20,931 11,869 3,727

8469 187 20,882

173 20,552

Group share of ﬁssociq_ied companies
Atlonuary 1 33 2477 380
At December 31 42 2,259 398

Standardised measure of discaunted future cash flow: . _ -
United States accounting principles require the disclosure of a standardised measure of discounted futire cash flows, relating to
proved oil and gas reserve quantities. In order to prepare the information a number of arbicrary assumptions are prescribed about
the fupute; despite political, technical and economic uncertainry. As a result the information so calculated does not provide a reliable
I of furure cash flows from proved reserves, nor does it permit a realistic comparison to be made of one entiry with another
cannot reflect the yarying circumstances within each entity. In addition a substantial but unknown

because the assumpti
proportion of furure re ows from oil and gas‘production acrivities is expected to derive from reserves which have already
cannot yer be regarded as proved.

been discovered, but w

1998
Eastern: .
Hemisphere Total
USAand 7 e s Is
Euraps Chher  Conada Other Eurcpe Other Canada Other Europe Chther

- Future cash inflows - 70770 86910 24739 1926 184,345 846265 123787 34,048 5220 249.320 93,555 121,849 - 70,696 6,212 292,312

ture production and

dévelopment costs 25,891 36,979 11,120 1,253 75243 24,198 35056 12,510 2073 73,837 26,879 34,121 19,957 1,495 87452

Future fax expenses .~ 17,989 27 4,361 45 49442 27,088 53,650 6958 1,350 89,046 31,199 61,554 17,147 12377111137
Future nef cash flows 26,890 22, 9,258 : 35081 14,580....1797 86,437 35477 26,174 33,592 3480 98,723 .

Effect of discounting

cash flows ot 10% 12592 12567 3329 15,884 19281 5 854 41161 1,414 41284
Standardised
- measure of .
.:-.  discounted future L
h flows 14,298 10,117 5929 19,095°15,800, = 9,438 943 45,276..19,884 15301 20,188 1.2,06&6 57,439

5,208 _ 2,761

Change in stundardised measure ¢

At Jonuary 100 .
~'Net changes in prices and: production costs

Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery
5/{Sales) of minerals in place

associated companies in the USA

: previous reserve estimales 2,811
..§! related 1o futos .Pl.’. : :_.(2,008}
Sales and transfers of oil and osts - [16,650)

Development cost incurred

Accretion of discount
Net'change in income tox
{ December 31

3,602
4,643
(25,371)
57,439 -
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SUMMARISED FINANCIAL DATA ‘

Income datea B e $ million
1998 1997 1998+ 1995 1994

Sales proceeds e )

Oil and gas . 124,712 155,998 156542 . 134,118 116,027

Chemicals . 2,795 14,822 14,609 15385 11,069

Other L 767 837 813 1,187 2,013

Gross proceeds

138,274 171,657 171,964 150,690 129,109

Salos Taxes, excise dufies and similar levies . A4582 43502 43651 40818 34279
Net proceeds 93,692 128,155 128,313 109,877 04830

Earnings by indushry segment® ) o . ) .
Exploration and Production {247) .. 4,569 - 4871 2,947 . 2 363
Downstream Gas and Power Gereration {349) - 245 264 309 7 - 297
Qil Products R 2 028 2:169 1,903

Chemicals e AT T I

Other indusiry segmants © .. . (40] 122 .. = 4N

Total operating segments el 674 8074 7,934

Corporate T 227 5] 340

Minority interests . .. L e

Earnings on an eshmaled curreni cost of supplies [CCS) bosis® e 901 8125 8274 -

CCS adjustment Co {551} {372) 612

Net incomie I 350 7,753 8,886

Assels and lichilities data {at December 31)

Total fixed and other long-term assets 87,469 05,974 85741 82,575 75677
Net current giséis/[liabilifies) 8,541 {1,161} 5,317 3,468 4,071

Total debt T “TTI3,810 10,607 11,816 12780 11,410
Parent Companiés’ interest in Group net assels : ' 54,962 60,386 63,006 . 58,781 56,142
Minority interests i 2,701 2,216 3,415 3,106 1,880

Capital employed 71,473 73,209 78,237 74,669 69,632
Cash How data L

Cash flow provided by opera i o 14,729 16730 16,4619 14873 11,718
Caopital expenditure (including capitalised leases) 12,859 12,274 11,023 10,965 9,482
Cash flow used in investing activities o 12,500 0 13,605 10,049 10,338 7,199
Cash flow provided by/{used in} financing activities e O 24m [706)  (604) - - (467) 321
Dividends paid 5993 5382 . 5149 4711 389

{1,589) {3,375 043U I459) Y 425

Other statistics o s
Return on clverc:ge capital emplojed™ . _ T 2.8%  12.0% 12.0% . 107% 10.3%
Total debt ratio’ 19.3% 14.5%  151% ©17.0% 16.7%

* Financing costs and smineeity intérests are allocated to segments with efféct From 1998: Compnrahva dmo for 1996 and 1997 have been restated, but it is.nat pruchcqb?e ta restate data
for 1994 and 1995,

® On this basis, cost of sales of the volumes sold in the péried is based on the cost of supplies. of the same peériad [instédd of using the Firstin fisskout [FIFO} method of inventary accounting
used by most Group companies) and aflowarnce is.meide for fhe estimated tax effect. These eartiings &re more comparable with those of companies using the lastin firstout {LIFO] invéntory
basis after excluding any inventary deawdown effécis.

©CCS earnings plus minority interests plus interest expense, less fax on the interast expense, at o percentoge of average capital employed.
9Total debt as a percentage of capital employed.




- . . $ miffion
1997 19967 995 1994

Capital expenditure’
Exploration and Production -
Downstream Gas ond Power

4995 4477 3811

Ot Products 4,308
_ Chemicals - 1,409
Other 275

10,965

expense [excluding depreciation and

rrency franslation differences) _ 1,595 870
New investments in-associgted companies ‘ 1,282 550
" Total capm:_l_ o 15,736 /15,160 12,915 /12,385

*eomprising
Europe 4,832 4,966 :
Other Eastern Hemlsphere 3,275
USA and Canada 3,433
Other Western Hemisphers 711
12,385

Capital expenditure includes tangible and intangible fixed assets acquired on purchase oF nev Group companies and additional jeint venture interests,

$ million
1996

1997

3nd 4

E Quarter - “Quarter .. Qi uarter
Gross prOceeds R 34,604 -33,141 47 718 42,637 41,748
less sales taxes, excise duties cmd . S S T :
similar levies T 11462 13,1600 11,179 10,581 11,378 10,771 10,800 10,553 11506 10,952 10,703 10,490
Net proceads 22,942 21,931 23400 25,369 31,916 31,090 31,016 34,133 36,212 31,685 31,045 29,371

21,378 17,170 18,49% 19.b27 25,268 24,230 24,262 26,634 28,233 24,641 24,356 22,221

1,564 4811 4901 5742 6648 6860 4754 7499 797957044 6,689 7,150
(4716) 2,081 2,518 3,221 3177 3882 3, 948 4,935 4,623 4,122 3,795 4,589
{3,739} 1,497 696: 2,312 2,349 2,066 1,

Earnings onon estimated rren! cost L o
of supplies basis" o (3,568):-. 918 1,606 .
£ On this basis, coét of sales of the volumes sold in the period is based on 1he cost of supplies of rhe samme . 'nstead of using the firskin FiFO} ‘method of inventory acco

used by most Group. companigs) and allowance is made for the- estimated fax effect. These sarmings are more comparable with those of companies using the lust—m firstout [LIFO) inventory
basis after excluding any. inventory drawdown effects.




PERATIONAL COMPARISONS 1994 -19%98

Crude oil pmdue?iﬁﬁ fleets _ o
lincluding Group share of associated compomes} thotisand barrelsidily  |owned/demise-hired and timechartered, ot December ] " number of hips.
198 1997 1996 1995 1994 . T 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Europe 590 551 560 533 525 Sl iankers 61 73 75 76
Africa 317 423 423 411 398 “Gas carriers 6 7 7 8 3
Middle East 474 455 456 472 467 : e million deadweight tonnes
AsiaPacific. - . 261 264 290 264 239 Oiltankers 8.1 7.7 8.2 8.4 8.5
USA and Cahada 589 559 528 512 482 thousand cubic metres
Other Western Gas carriers 435 461 358 447 197
Hemisphiere . . 61 74 48 62 a3
2354 2328 2305 2254 2194  Chemicals sales: net proceeds $ million
i million tonries-o yeor 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Melric equivdlent 118 116 115 113 110 Eirope . 5381 6468 6,449 6705 4,655
. Other Eastern ’ I -
Natural gas sales S Hemisphere 1,324 1,573 1,468 1,672 1,274
fincluding Group share of associated companies) million cubic feetdally - A ond Canada 5,172 5,744 5,580 5,749 4,194
1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 Sihor Western e
Eurhope 3321 3302 3409 2869 2911 Hemisphere 395 470 509 468 . 244
Cther Eastern —— " i
Hemisphere 2,002 21770 02,296 2,087 1,965 12,272, 14'25'5::- }_4'006 14,594 1.{.)'367
USA and Canada 2,489 2,464 3593 72/628 . 2,401  Employees L
ther Wesrern : e {average numbe[s] ' i.housunds
Hemtsphere 50 58 56 40 40 1998 1507 996 1995 504
7,862 8,001 8,354 7624 7,317 Europe a1 20 40 a2 43
billion.cubic metres a year Other Eastern
Metric equivalent 77 78 82 74 71 Hemisphere 27 27 25 26 26
USA ond Canada 21 26 27 27 27
Refinery processing intoke. . - thousand barrels daily . Other Western L
1996 1995 Tloo4  Hemisphere 13 12 12 A 11
Crude oil 3,771 3,494 3,493 102 105 104 106 107
Feedstocks 193 190 176 ..., $ million
7 3,964 3,684 3,669 rafion 5,260 5,515 5556 .-5458 - 5,120
s Social law toxes 476 511 524 527 AS56
Europe 1,670 1,723 1,675 1595 1608 Pensionsand S
Bihar Eastars™ o S tieeeebe s similar obligations 245 82 205 259 L 396
Hemisphere 1,133 995 873 833 5,981 6,108 6,285 6,244 3,972
USA and Canada 573 1;309 1,211 1,137 1,153
Other Western P
Hemisphere - 94 92 83 79 75 The figures shown in the tables on this page represent the totals
3,371 4,257 3,964 ..3,684 3,669 repotted by Group companies, reflecting their dealings with
S - ~millian tonnes a year ~ third parties and with associated companies. However, crude
Metric equivalent 189 213 198 184 183 - oil production and natural gas sales include the Group share
of these associated companies: A separate table has been given
Ol sedes tausond barrels daify it respect of associated companies Equilon and Motiva. Crude
T 1998 1995 1994 oil production, refinery processing intake and oil sales figures
Gasolines 1,687 2,155 . 2,001 include natural gas liquids.
Kerosines 594 628 611
Gas/Diesel cils 1,787 1,722 | 1,635
Fuel il 748 - 725 7 . 720
Other products %0 8 741 696
Total oil products 5716 6,560 5,971 5,663 oo
Crude oil 3,248 4,121 4,004 3,678 © o
Total oil sales 8,964 10,681 9,975 @341
millian tonnes ¢ yeor
Metric equiva!enf 448 534 533 499 467
Groug share of Equilon and Motiva volumes =
{nof mc[uded above) thousand barrels daily
1998 1997 1994 1995 1994
' Refmery processing
intake 656 n/a n/a n/o n/a
Totat oil products salés. 1,070 n/a n/a n/a n/a
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SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

Anssed Bonerd Moling

The 101st Annual General Meeting

of The “Shell” Transport and Trading
Company, p.l.c. will be held at

The Queen Elizabeth IT Conference
Centre, Broad Sanctuary, Westminster,
London SW1P 3EE, on Friday May 7,
1999 at 11:00 a.m. The Notice convening
the Meeting is enclosed.

Shell Transport Share Price/
FTSE 100 Index

Shell Transport ADR/
Standard & Poor’s 500 Index

Index: December 31, 1993 = 100

i i
% [FSE100

e s

Index: December 31, 1993 = 100

. Shell 'Fn:msésrth .

AT 125
: ; j : 50 i : i ; 75
94 95 P4 o7 98 94 95 b] 97 28
Shareholdar base Earnings and dividends
The estimated geographical distribution pence per 25p Ordinary share
of shareholdings at the end of 1998 was: 1998 1997 1996 1095 1994
o Dividends
Royal Shell Interim 53 51 4.8 4.3 3.7
Dutch Transport  Combined Finat 82 80 75 68 53
United Kingdom 2 96 39 13.5 131 123 11t 90
Netherlands 45 a 27
UsA 39 4 25 Eamings 65 178 213 140 150
Switzerland 9 i 5 Netassets 1350 146.7 149.6 1539 145.9
France 3 ° 2 “ Proposed final dividend, subject to approval at the Annual
Garmany 1 ° 1 Genaral Mesting of the Company on May 7, 1999. The final
Belgium 1 a Bl dividend will be paid on May 14, 1999 to Members on the
Oihers 5 < Re;gisler cndAeprg 23, 1999 and o holders of Bearar Warrants
who surrender Coupon No. 203.
“Less than 1% US dollars per New York Share®
1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Share prices Dividends
London Stack Exchange Interim 0.53 0.64 059 051 046
pence per 25p Ordinary share Final < 078 093 077 062
1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 <= 142 152 1.28 1.08
Highest 464 485 352 287 253
Lowest 6 331 276 231 219  Eamnings 005 175 199 152 138
Year end 369 440 337 284 232 Net assets 13.447 14,58 1521 1429 13.65
b One New York Share = six 25p Ordinary shares.
New York Stock Exchange The current Double Taxation Cunventions between the United

US dollars per New York Share’

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

Highest 46.50 47.31 34.38 27.33 23.92
Lowest 31.00 33.25 25.54 21.42 18.96
Year end 37.19 43.75 3413 2713 21.79

Laphol grins fex

For the purposes of United Kingdom
capital gains tax, the market values of the
Company's shares were:

Apell 6, 1965 March 31, 1982

Ordinary shares of 25p each
Registered 2.17p 41.67p
Bearer 9.24p 42.11p
First Preference shares
of £1 each 78.75p 37.50p
Second Preference shares
of £1 each $7.81p 49.50p

Kingdom and the United States of America and Canada provide
for the peryment to qualifying United Siates ond Canadian residents
of an amewnt equal 1o the relevant tax credit, less United Kingdom
income tax at tha rate of 15% on the sum of the dividend and the
tax credit, The final dividend of 1998 will have o tax credit of
10/90ths. In this case the withholding tax ot 15% would be more
than the tax credit and consequently the payment is trealed as
being reduced to zera. Tax autherities in the United States and
Canada have not ruled on whether a shareholder whe pays United
States or Canadian income kax should account for the repayable
tax credit and <loim credit for an equal amount within their tax
return, or whether only the net dividend should be reported.
The 1997 final dividend and the 1998 interim dividend were
paid as foreign income dividends and consequenty did not carry
o tax credit. United States and Canodion resident shareholders
were therefore not entifled to receive any additiono! emount
under the terms of the respective Double Taxation Conventions
in respect of these dividends.
The 1997 interim dividend aad prior year dividend amounts are
shown as US dollar equivalents of the dividend and 1ax credit at
time of payment before deduction of income tax at 15%.
“The Actual emount fo be paid will be determined by the US$/E
exchange rate ruling on May 14, 1999,
4 The US dofler figures for earnings and net assets are transations
of the abave sterling amounts at the following rates of exchange:
£1=U8%
1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

Earnings
{average rale) 16589 1.6370 1.5614 1.5815 1,5400
Net Assets
lyearend rote) LS9  1.6566 1.6948 1.5481 1.5600

All data on this page have been restated to reflect the capitalisation issue which became
effective on June 30, 1997, whereby two 25p Ordinary shares were issued for each 25p
Ordinary share outstanding,




Firmrwhl colendey

Financial year ends December 31, 1998

Announcements
Full year results for 1998 February 11, 1999
Firsi quarter results for 1999 May 6, 1999*
Second quarter results for 1999 August 5, 1999+
Third quarter results for 1999 November 4, 1999*

Dividends - Ordinary shares {UK Register}
1998 Final
Proposed dividend announced February 11, 1999

Exdividend date April 19, 1999
Recerd date April 23, 1999
Payment date Moy 14, 1999

1999 tnterim
Announced August 5, 1999*
Ex-dividend date September 27, 1999*
Record date " October 1, 1999*

Payment daote Novermber 1, 1999*

Dividends — ADRs {New York Register]
1998 Final
Proposed dividend announced February 11, 1999

Exdividend date April 21, 1999
Record date April 23, 1999
Payment date May 20, 1999 B
1999 Interim
Announced August 5, 199%*
Ex-dividend date September 29, 1999~
Reeord date October 1, 1999*
Payment date November 5, 1999*

Dividends — Preference shares: Payment dates

5'%% First Preference shares April 1 and October 1

7% Second Preference shares  February 1 and August 1

Report and accounts

Pgblicoﬁon April 7, 1999

Annual General Meeting May 7, 1999

*The dates shown are provisienal and subject to final
confirmation.

Shors registrotion

Enquiries about sharcholdings in Shell
Transport such as change of address,
dividend payments and share certificates
may be addressed to the Registrar:

Lloyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway, Worthing
West Sussex BN99 6DA
Telephone: 01903 833397
Fax: 01903 833012

Fhver Yok Shores

Enquiries about the New York Shares

may be addressed to the Depository:

The Bank of New York

101 Barclay Street

New York NY 10286

Atm: Investor Relations — 11 East

Telephone: 888 BNY ADRS (USA only)
+1 212 815 5204 (international)

Fax: +1 212 571 3050

Lithar

Engquiries abour the activities of
companies in the Royal Dutch/
Shell Group may be addressed to:

The Shareholder Relations Office
Shell Centre, London SE1 7NA
Telephone: 0171 934 2323

Fax: 0171 934 6625

Enquiries about Shell products and
services in the UK may be addressed to:

Shell Customer Service Centre
Rowlandsway House
Rowlandsway, Wythenshawe
Manchester M22 55B
Telephone: G800 731 8888
Fax: 0161 499 8088

For matters not mentioned above, please
write to:

The Company Secretary

The “Shell” Transport and Trading
Company, p.l.c.

Shell Centre, London SE1 7NA
Telephone: 0171 934 3363

Fax: 0171 934 5153

renstor relutions

Enquiries from institutional shareholders
and requests for copies of public
documents, such as Annual Reporrs,
Summary Annual Reports, Quarterly
Results Announcements or the Annual
Report on Form 20-F filed with the US
Securities and Exchange Commission,
may be addressed to:

London

Shell International Limited
Group Investor Relations

Shell Centre

London SE1 7NA

United Kingdom

Telephone: +44 (0)171 934 3856
Fax: +44 (0)171 934 3702
E-mail: IR-London@8S1.shell.com

The Hague

Shell International B.V.

Group Investor Relations

PO Box 162

2501 AN The Hague

The Netherlands

Telephone: +31 (0)70 377 4540
Fax: +31 (0)70 377 3115
E-mail: IR-Hague@SI.shell.com

New York

Shell Oil Company

712 Fifth Avenue

New York, NY 10019-4102

USA

Telephone: +1 212 261 5660

Fax: +1 212 261 5663

E-mail: IR-NewYork@Shellus.com
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